
    
  

 
 

 
  

 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
   

 

 
  

 

     
  

   
  

 
          

 
     

  
  

   
 

 
     

 
 
 

BIG  BEAR AREA  REGIONAL  WASTEWATER AGENCY  
Regular Board Meeting Agenda 
October 26, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. 

121 Palomino Drive, Big Bear City, California 

1.  CALL TO  ORDER  

1.A. Roll Call 
 
2.  PLEDGE OF  ALLEGIANCE  

3.  APPROVAL  OF AGENDA  
 

4.  PUBLIC FORUM  
Public testimony is permitted at this time only on consent calendar items and other matters 
not listed on the posted agenda that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency. 
State law prohibits the Agency from taking action on any items not listed on the posted 
agenda. Public comment on items listed on the posted agenda will be taken at the time each 
item is called for discussion. 

5.  PRESENTATION AND INTRODUCTION  

5.A. Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

6.  INFORMATION/COMMITTEE REPORTS  

6.A. General Manager’s Report 

7.  CONSENT CALENDAR  
All matters listed on the Consent Calendar will be enacted by one motion at the appropriate 
time. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If a detailed discussion is 
necessary, any Governing Board Member may request that an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and considered separately. 

7.A. Approval of the Meeting Minutes from the September 28, 2022 Regular Meeting 

7.B. Monthly Disbursements Report for September - Informational 

7.C. Investment Report Identifying Agency Investments and Reporting Interest Income 
for September – Informational 

8.  ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
9.  OLD BUSINESS  

9.A. Wastewater-Based Surveillance for Viruses and Other Infectious Diseases 



   
  

 
  

   
 

   
 

      
 

 
11.  COMMENTS  AND ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    
     

   
   

  
 

  
   

  
 

   

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 
Regular Board Meeting Agenda 

October 26, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

10.  NEW BUSINESS  –  DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS  
 
10.A. Annual Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

10.B. Exemption from Competitive Procurement for the Replenish Big Bear Pilot Facility 

10.C. Adjourn the November 23rd and December 28th 2022 Regular Board Meetings and 
Schedule a Special Meeting 

11.A.  General Manager Comments 

11.B. Governing Board Member Comments 

12.  ADJOURNMENT  
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Government Code Section 54954.2, 
if you need special assistance to participate in an Agency meeting or other services offered by the 
Agency, please contact the Agency at (909) 584-4018. Notification at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting or time when services are needed will assist Agency staff in assuring that reasonable 
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service. 

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred to 
on this agenda are on file in the office of the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency and are 
available for public inspection during normal business hours. 

Visit www.bbarwa.org to view and/or print the Agenda Package. 

http://www.bbarwa.org/#_blank


                                                                                                                      
                                                                                    

   
                                                                                                                                                            
    
   
                                              

 

 

 

   

     

   

    

      

   

   
   

 
    

   
 

  
     

  

 
   

  
  

 

  

  

 

 

  
    

 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Big Bear Area Regional 
Wastewater Agency 
Rick Herrick – Chair 
John Green – Vice-Chair 
Jim Miller – Director 
Bynette Mote – Director 
Larry Walsh – Director   

AGENDA ITEM: 5.A. 

MEETING DATE: October 26, 2022 

TO: Governing Board of the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

FROM: David Lawrence, P.E., General Manager 

PREPARED BY: Jennifer McCullar, Finance Manager 

SUBJECT: Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION: 

The Agency engaged the services of Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP (“RAMS”), Certified 
Public Accountants, to perform the annual audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 

Please find attached 1) a letter addressing the Board and summarizing the audit (communication 
required to those in charge of governance) and 2) the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (a 
bound copy to follow). It should be noted that in the attached letter to the Board, certain Significant 
Risks have been listed that include 1) management’s override of internal controls over financial 
reporting, and 2) management’s failure to recognize revenue in accordance with GAAP.  These are 
common, presumptive risks and are not specific to the Agency nor have any instances of these 
occurred or been noted by the auditors. 

RAMS has issued an unmodified opinion, stating that the financial statements for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2022 present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Agency 
and are free of material misstatement (please see the Independent Auditor’s Report in the Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report). 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

There is no financial impact. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Informational 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Letter to the Board 
• Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 



735 E. Carneg ie Dr. Sui te I 00 

San Bern ard ino, CA 92 408 

909 889 087 1 T 

909 889 536 1 F 

ramscpa. net 

PARTNERS 

Terry P. Shea. CPA 

Scott W. Manno. CPA. CGMA 

Leena Shanbhag, CPA. MST. CGMA 

Bradferd A. Weleb1r. CPA. MBA. CGMA

Jenny W . Liu. CPA. MST 

Brenda L. Od le. CPA. MST (Panne,· Em

MANAGERS/ STAFF 

Ga,·denya D uran, CPA. CGMA 

Brianna Schultz. CPA. CGMA 

Seong-Hyea Lee. CPA. MBA 

Evelyn Mo,·entin-Barce na, CPA 

Vernnica Hernandez. CPA 

Laura A1v izu. CPA 

X inlu Zoe Z hang. CPA. MSA 

John Maldonado, CPA, MSA 

Thao Le, CPA. MBA 

Julia Rod,•iguez Fuentes. CPA. MSA 

Demi Hite. CPA 

MEMBERS 
Ame,·ica n Institute of 
Certifi ed Public Accountants 

PCPS The A/CPA Affiance 
ror CPA Firms 

Governme nlaf Audie 
Qua/ icy Cente, 

Employee Benefit Plan 
Audit Quafily Cencer 

Cali fornia Soc iety of 
Cenified Publi c Acco untants 

 

eritus) 

• 
Proud Member of 
AlliottGlobalAlliance·· 

ROGERS, ANDERSON , MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CE RTIFIED PUBLI C ACCOUNTANTS, SINCE 1948 

 

 
 

STABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST. 

 
 
 

   
    

 
    

 
 

      
      

         
        

    
 

        
 

      
       

      
      

      
       

       
  

 
        

      
        

     
        

          
     

      
     

        
     

 
       

          
   

       
     

  

Board of Directors 
Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 
121 Palomino Drive 
Big Bear City, California 92314 

We have audited the financial statements of Big Bear Area Regional 
Wastewater Agency (the Agency) as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated October 13, 
2022. Professional standards require that we advise you of the 
following matters relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 6, 2022, our 
responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to form and 
express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have 
been prepared by management with your oversight are presented 
fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the 
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your 
respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan 
and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration 
of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our 
audit, we considered the internal control of the Agency solely for the 
purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any 
assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related 
to the audit that are, in our professional judgment, relevant to your 
responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, 
we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying 
other matters to communicate to you. 

-1- 



       
      

 
 

 
 

       
 

             
   

 
       

 
                

        
 

  
 

          
 

           
            
       

 
          
    

 
                

             
              

              
               

   
 

        
 

   
 

             
                 

               
            

             
                 

               
              

              
           

 
  

Board of Directors October 13, 2022 
Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously 
communicated to you. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and our network firms have 
complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. 

Significant Risks 

We have identified the possibility of the following significant risks: 

Management's override of internal controls over financial reporting: Management override of 
internal controls is the intervention by management in handling financial information and 
making decisions contrary to internal control policy. 

Revenue recognition: Management's failure to recognize revenue in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

These significant risks are presumptive in most audits and merit attention by the auditors due to 
the direct impact over financial reporting and internal control processes. Although identified as 
significant risks, we noted no matters of management override of controls or deviations from 
generally accepted accounting principles which caused us to modify our audit procedures or any 
related matters which are required to be communicated to those charged with governance due to 
these identified risks. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary 
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Agency is included in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. As described in Note 4 to the financial statements, during the year, the Agency 
changed its method of accounting for leases receivable by adopting Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases. Accordingly, the cumulative effect of the 
accounting change as of the beginning of the year has been reported in the Statement of Net 
Position. No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional 
standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual 
transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas 
for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

-2-



       
      

 
 

 
 

   
 

             
             

             
            
              
     

 
          

 
              

              
               
     

 
             

              
               

     
 

            
            

              
               

 
    

 
           

             
           

 
               

     
 

               
              

 
              
              

       
 

               
             

      
 

  

Board of Directors October 13, 2022 
Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on 
knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
markedly from management’s current judgments. 

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are: 

Management’s estimate of the fair value of investments is based on information provided by 
financial institutions. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the fair 
value of investments in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

Management’s estimate of capital asset depreciation is based on historical estimates of each 
capitalized item’s useful life. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop 
the estimated useful lives in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Management’s estimate of the net pension liability/net OPEB liability and related deferred 
inflows and deferred outflows is based on actuarial reports provided by independent 
actuaries. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting 
Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency’s financial statements relate to: 

The disclosure of fair value of investments in Note 3 to the financial statements represents 
amounts susceptible to market fluctuations. 

The disclosure of accumulated depreciation in Note 4 to the financial statements is based on 
estimated useful lives which could differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item. 

The disclosure of net pension liability and related deferred inflows and deferred outflows in 
Note 7 to the financial statements is based on actuarial assumptions. Actual future liabilities 
and deferrals may vary from disclosed estimates. 

The disclosure of the net OPEB liability and related deferred inflows and deferred outflows in 
Note 8 to the financial statements is based on actuarial assumptions. Actual future 
liabilities/assets may vary from disclosed estimates. 

-3-



       
      

 
 

 
 

      
 

             
   

 
     

 
             
               
            

              
             

          
 

             
               

                
              

     
 

   
 

              
             

               
           

 
    

 
             

      
 

     
 

              
             

         
 

      
 

               
            

             
               

        
  

Board of Directors October 13, 2022 
Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance 
of the audit. 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known 
and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, 
and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards 
require us to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 
on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial 
statements as a whole. There were no uncorrected material misstatements. 

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected 
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit 
procedures. None of the misstatements identified by us as a result of our audit procedures and 
corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, 
or auditing matter, which could be significant to the Agency’s financial statements or the auditor’s 
report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the 
attached letter dated October 13, 2022. 

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no 
consultations with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with the Agency, we generally discuss a 
variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that 
may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a 
condition to our retention as the Agency’s auditors. 

-4-



       
      

 
 

 
 

        
 

            
            

               
            

             
               

              
                

            
            

             
               

               
 

            
              

             
           

                 
                 

           
             
 

 
              

                
             

         
 

                
                  

    

 
   

Board of Directors October 13, 2022 
Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements 

Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information in 
documents containing the Agency’s audited financial statements does not extend beyond the 
financial information identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform any 
procedures to corroborate such other information. However, in accordance with such standards, 
we have applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis, as well 
as, the Schedule of the Agency’s Proportionate Share of the Plan’s Net Pension Liability and 
Related Ratios as of the Measurement Date, the Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions, the 
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, and the Schedule of OPEB 
Plan Contributions. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the Required Supplementary 
Information (RSI) and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on supplementary information, which accompany the financial 
statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the 
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the 
prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial 
statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying 
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves. 

Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information which we believe is a 
material misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such 
information, or its manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or 
manner of its presentation, appearing in the financial statements. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and 
management of the Agency and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 

October 13, 2022 

-5-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

121 Palomino Drive 
P.O. Box 517 

Big Bear City, CA 92314-0517 
Phone: 909-584-4018 

Fax: 909-585-4340 

October 13, 2022 

Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP 
735 E. Carnegie Drive, Suite 100 
San Bernardino, CA 92408 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of 
Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency (the Agency) as of June 30, 2022 and for the year 
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on whether the basic financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows, of the Agency in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted for governments in the United States of America (U.S. 
GAAP). 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. 
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of 
accounting information such that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves as of October 13, 
2022. 

Financial Statements 

• We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 
May 6, 2022, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of the 
various opinion units referred to above in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

• We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

• We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

• We acknowledge our responsibility for compliance with the laws, regulations, and 
provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 

• We have reviewed, approved, and taken responsibility for the financial statements and 
related notes. 

• We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations. 

-1-



• We have identified and communicated to you all previous audits, attestation engagements, 
and other studies related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations 
have been implemented. 

• Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 
measured at fair value, are reasonable. 

• All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP 
requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

• The effects of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for 
and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

• If applicable, all component units, as well as joint ventures with an equity interest, are 
included and other joint ventures and related organizations are properly disclosed. 

• All components of net position, net investment in capital assets, restricted, and 
unrestricted are properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 

• All funds and activities are properly disclosed. 
• Our policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an 

expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position 
are available is appropriately disclosed and net position is properly recognized under the 
policy. 

• All revenues within the statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
have been properly classified as to operating or non-operating. 

• All expenses have been properly classified. 
• Deposit and investment risks have been properly and fully disclosed. 
• Capital assets are properly capitalized, reported, and if applicable, depreciated. 
• All required supplementary information is measured and presented within the prescribed 

guidelines. 
• With regard to investments and other instruments reported at fair value: 

- The underlying assumptions are reasonable and they appropriately reflect 
management's intent and ability to carry out its stated courses of action. 

- The measurement methods and related assumptions used in determining fair value 
are appropriate in the circumstances and have been consistently applied. 

- The disclosures related to fair values are complete, adequate, and in accordance with 
U.S. GAAP. 

- There are no subsequent events that require adjustments to the fair value 
measurements and disclosures included in the financial statements. 

• With respect to nonattest services provided, we have performed the following: 
- Made all management decisions and performed all management functions; 
- Assigned a competent individual to oversee the services; 
- Evaluated the adequacy of the services performed; 
- Evaluated and accepted responsibility for the result of the service performed; and 
- Established and maintained internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities. 

Information Provided 

• We have provided you with: 
- Access to all information, of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation and 

fair presentation of the financial statements of the various opinion units referred to 
above, such as records, documentation, meeting minutes, and other matters; 

- Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; 
and 

-2-



- Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 
- A written acknowledgement of all the documents that we expect to issue that will 

be included in the annual report and the planned timing and method of issuance 
of that annual report; 

- A final version of the annual report (including all the documents that, together, 
comprise the annual report) in a timely manner prior to the date of the auditor's 
report. 

• The financial statements and any other information included in the annual report are 
consistent with one another, and the other information does not contain any material 
misstatements. 

• All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 
financial statements. 

• We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves: 
- Management; 
- Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
- Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

• We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud , or suspected fraud, affecting the 
entity's financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, vendors, 
regulators, or others. 

• We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, and assessments whose 
effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements and we have not 
consulted legal counsel concerning litigation, claims, or assessments. 

• We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity's related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

• There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning 
noncompliance with or deficiencies in accounting, internal control, or financial reporting 
practices. 

• The Agency has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or 
classification of assets and liabilities. 

• We have disclosed to you all guarantees, whether written or oral, under which Big Bear 
Area Regional Wastewater Agency is contingently liable. 

• We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concentrations known to 
management that are required to be disclosed in accordance with GASB Statement No. 
62 (GASB-62), Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained 
in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and A/CPA Pronouncements. Significant estimates are 
estimates at the balance sheet date that could change materially within the next year. 
Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues, available sources of supply, or 
markets or geographic areas for which events could occur that would significantly disrupt 
normal finances within the next year. 

• We have identified and disclosed to you the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts 
and grant agreements that could have a direct and material effect on financial statement 
amounts, including legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in 
separate funds. 

• There are no: 
- Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations, or provisions of contracts or 

grant agreements whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial 
statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, including applicable budget 
laws and regulations. 

- Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised are probable of 
assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with GASB-62. 

-3-



- Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or 
disclosed by GASB-62. 

- Continuing disclosure consent decree agreements or filings with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission and we have filed updates on a timely basis in accordance 
with the agreements (Rule 240, 15c2-12). 

• The Agency has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or 
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset or future revenue been pledged as 
collateral, except as disclosed to you. 

• We have complied with all aspects of grant agreements and other contractual agreements 
that would have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of 
noncompliance. 

• We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension and 
other postemployment benefit liabilities, deferrals and costs for financial accounting 
purposes are appropriate in the circumstances. 

Supplementary Information in Relation to the Financial Statements as a Whole 

• With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements: 
- We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the supplementary 

information in accordance with applicable criteria. 
- We believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly 

presented in accordance with any applicable criteria. 
- The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in 

the prior period. 
- When the supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial 

statements, management will make the audited financial statements readily available 
to the intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date of 
issuance by the entity of the supplementary information and the auditor's report 
thereon. 

- We acknowledge our responsibility to include the auditor's report on the 
supplementary information in any document containing the supplementary information 
and that indicates the auditor reported on such supplementary information. 

- We acknowledge our responsibility to present the supplementary information with the 
audited financial statements or, if the supplementary information will not be presented 
with the audited financial statements, to make the audited financial statements readily 
available to the intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date 
of issuance by the entity of the supplementary information and the auditor's report 
thereon. 

• We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension and 
other postemployment benefit liabilities, deferrals and costs for financial accounting 
purposes are appropriate in the circumstances. 

Required Supplementary Information 

• With respect to the various required supplementary information accompanying the 
financial statements: 
- We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the required supplementary 

information in accordance with the applicable GASS statements. 
- We believe the required supplementary information, including its form and content is 

measured and fairly presented in accordance with the applicable GASB statements. 

-4-



- The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in 
the prior period. 

Use of a Specialist 

• We agree with the findings of specialists in evaluating the pension and other 
postemployment benefit liabilities and have adequately considered the qualifications of 
the specialist in determining the amounts and disclosures used in the financial statements 
and underlying accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given 
to specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their 
work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an impact on the 
independence or objectivity of the specialists. 

Signature (;AOL 
Name: David Lawrence, General Manager 

Date: October 13, 2022 

,. 

i 
Name: Jertnifer McCullar, Finance Manager 

Date: October 13, 2022 

-5-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Annual Comprehensive 

Financial Report 

~......._ _ _,_.__---. 

For the Year Ended 

JUNE 30, 2022 
Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency, 

Big Bear City, CA 



This page left blank intentionally. 



Big Bear Area 
Regional Wastewater Agency 
Big Bear City, California 

FY 2022 
Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 

Protecting Big Bear's Future 
through Responsible 

Planning 

David Lawrence, General Manager 

Prepared by 
Jennifer McCullar, Finance Manager 
Member of the Government Finance Officers 
Association of the United States and Canada and 
the California Society of Municipal Finance 
Officers 



This page left blank intentionally. 



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Table of Contents 

INTRODUCTION 

Letter of Transmittal ........................................................................................................................................ i 

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting ................................................................ vi 

Governing Board of Directors ........................................................................................................................ vii 

Organization Chart ....................................................................................................................................... viii 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

Independent Auditor's Report ........................................................................................................................ 1 

Management's Discussion and Analysis ........................................................................................................ 5 

Basic Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position .................................................................................................................. 15 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position .................................................... 16 

Statement of Cash Flows .................................................................................................................. 17 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ........................................................................................... 19 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of the Agency's Proportionate Share of the Plan's Net Pension Liability and 
Related Ratios as of the Measurement Date ................................................................................. 46 

Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions ........................................................................................... 47 

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios ...................................................... 48 

Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions .............................................................................................. 49 

Supplementary Information Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
- Budget vs. Actual .................................................................................................................................. 50 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards .................................................................................................................................... 51 

STATISTICAL SECTION 

Overview ...................................................................................................................................................... 53 

Financial Trends 

Net Position by Component - 10 Fiscal Years ............................................................................ 53 

Change in Net Position - 1 O Fiscal Years ................................................................................... 53 

Operating Revenues and Expenses - 10 Fiscal Years ............................................................... 54 

Operating Income, Income Before Capital Contributions, and Change in Net Position -
1 O Fiscal Years ....................................................................................................................... 58 

Operating Expense Detail - 10 Fiscal Years .............................................................................. 56 

Net Nonoperating Revenue and Expense, Capital Contributions (Connection Fee Revenue) 
1 O Fiscal Years ....................................................................................................................... 56 



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Table of Contents (Continued) 

Revenue Capacity 

Operating Revenue by Category - 10 Fiscal Years .................................................................... 57 

Operating Revenue by Component - 10 Fiscal Years ................................................................ 57 

Annual Charges by Member Agency- 10 Fiscal Years .............................................................. 57 

Annual Charges by Member Agency (graphical) - 10 Fiscal Years ............................................ 58 

Annual Charges by Member Agency % of Total. ........................................................................ 58 

Equivalent Dwelling Units by Member Agency - 10 Fiscal Years ............................................... 59 

Influent Flow by Member Agency Served (Millions of Gallons) - 10 Fiscal Years ...................... 59 

Annual Sewer User Fee Rate Charged per EDU - 10 Fiscal Years ........................................... 60 

Debt Capacity 

Debt Ratios-10 Fiscal Years ..................................................................................................... 60 

Debt Service Coverage - 10 Fiscal Years ................................................................................... 60 

Demographic and Economic Information 

Population Estimates .................................................................................................................. 61 

Unemployment Estimates ........................................................................................................... 61 

Household Income ...................................................................................................................... 62 

% of Employed Population by Industry ....................................................................................... 63 

% of Employed Population by Occupation .................................................................................. 63 

Big Bear Area Comparison to State of California ....................................................................... 64 

Operating Information 

Influent Flow (gallons)-10 Fiscal Years ..................................................................................... 65 

Equivalent Dwelling Units - 10 Fiscal Years ............................................................................... 65 

Agency Staffing by Department .................................................................................................. 66 

Staffing Levels ............................................................................................................................ 66 

Capital Assets (Net Book Value) ................................................................................................ 67 

Key Assets .................................................................................................................................. 67 

Capacity Utilization by Structure ................................................................................................. 68 



INTRODUCTION 



This page left blank intentionally. 



Letter of Transmittal 

October 13, 2022 

BIG BEAR AREA 
REGIONAL WASTEWATER AGENCY 

P.O. Box 517, 122 Palomino Drive, Big Bear City, CA 92314-0517 
(909) 584-4018 

Chair Person, Members of the Governing Board of Directors, and the Public: 

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (the Financial Report) of the Big Bear Area 
Regional Wastewater Agency (the Agency) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 is submitted. 
California state law requires the Agency, as a joint powers agency and operating under special 
district law, to publish and file with the State Controller an audit report conforming to generally 
accepted auditing standards within 12 months of the end of the fiscal year or years under 
examination. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the accuracy and reliability of the information 
contained in the report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has 
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated 
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable assurance, rather than absolute assurance, that 
the statements are free of any material misstatement. To the best of management's knowledge, 
the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and presents fairly the results of 
operations and financial position of the Agency. 

The Agency's financial statements have been audited by Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, 
LLP. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements of the Agency are free of material misstatement. The auditing firm has issued an 
unmodified opinion on the Agency's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2022. The independent auditor's report is located at the beginning of the Financial Section of 
the Financial Report on page 1. 

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) follows the independent auditor's report and 
provides an introduction, summary and analysis of the Agency's financial performance and 
basic financial statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in 
conjunction with it. 

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

This report is presented in three sections: 

-i-



Introduction, which includes this letter of transmittal, principal officials and organization chart. 

Financial, which includes the independent auditor's report on the financial statements, 
Management's Discussion and Analysis, the basic financial statements, and the required 
supplementary information. 

Statistical, which includes information related to financial trends, revenue capacity, debt 
capacity, demographic and economic conditions, and multi-year operational data. 

Profile of the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Legal and Organizational Structure 

The Agency is as an enterprise, wastewater treatment facility. The Agency was established in 
1974 and organized as a joint powers agency, currently operating under special districts law. 
The Agency was created as a management agency, obligated to provide services to three 
agencies: the Big Bear City Community Services District, the City of Big Bear Lake, and the 
County of San Bernardino Service Area 53 B (the Member Agencies). The Agency's service 
area encompasses a rural mountain community of approximately 79,000 acres and 25,000 
sewer connections. 

Governing Body 

The Agency is governed by a five-member governing board appointed annually by the 
governing bodies of its three Member Agencies. 

Services 

The Agency provides wastewater collection, treatment and disposal services to the Big Bear 
area, serving approximately 25,000 commercial and residential customers. On average, the 
Agency treats approximately 788 million gallons of wastewater annually at its treatment plant. 
The Member Agencies convey wastewater from their respective sewer systems into the 
Agency's interceptors and into the treatment plant. The Agency's facilities operate under permit 
from the California Regional Water Control Board, Santa Ana Region, Order No. R8-2005-0044. 
The Agency's 640-acre disposal site is located northeast of the Agency in the desert community 
of Lucerne Valley. The effluent from the treatment plant is pumped to Lucerne Valley for 
irrigation of fodder and fiber crops under permit from the California Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, Colorado River Basin, Order No. 01-156. The disposal site is leased to an 
independent contractor. 

Mission 

The Agency's mission is to efficiently collect, treat and beneficially reuse wastewater and bio­
solids in an environmentally and fiscally responsible manner. 

To carry out this mission, the Agency will meet the needs of the regulatory agencies and our 
community in an open and cooperative manner. 

-ii-



Budget Process 

Pursuant to the operating agreement among the Agency and its Member Agencies, an annual 
budget must be adopted by May 1 of each year. By California State Law, the Agency is 
required to adopt its budget by July 1 of each year. 

The budget process involves long-range planning, which is essential to financial management 
and maximizing ratepayer value. The Agency completes a five-year financial forecast each 
year. The first year of the forecast, is the Agency's annual budget. The budget provides a solid 
picture of the Agency's expectations for the next twelve months and is an accountability tool for 
management and reflects its commitment to performance. The forecast is the Agency's best 
estimate of performance beyond the next twelve months. It is based on historical trend 
analysis, economic conditions, inflationary expectations, and other relevant information that may 
impact future performance. Each year, the Agency reviews and updates its 20-year capital plan 
which includes 1) the scheduled maintenance and replacement of Agency assets and 2) any 
planned improvement or capacity expansion projects. 

The long-range financial plan indicates the adequacy of the Agency's revenues to meet debt 
covenant tests, fund balance targets, and capital requirements and is a critical tool in 
maintaining stable and adequate rates. 

Economic Condition 

The Agency's economic condition is determined based on the financial outlook or expected, 
future financial strength of the Agency. The Agency has maintained stable operations by 1) 
managing operating expenses to inflationary growth over time, 2) long-term planning for asset 
maintenance and 3) modifying its rates as needed. Further, based on long-range planning, the 
outlook for the Agency is good, with adequate revenue to cover its costs, maintain and improve 
its facilities, meet its debt service requirements as they come due and fund the minimum 
balance requirements associated with its contingency, liquidity, capital improvement and debt 
service reserve funds. Factors affecting the Agency's economic condition include the local 
economy, long-range financial planning, financial policies and practices, and major initiatives. 

Local Economy 

The local area is a four-season, resort community located in the San Bernardino Mountains of 
Southern California. The economy is driven by tourists and a large, part-time population of 
second homeowners. The food service, accommodation, recreation and entertainment 
industries are the largest employers followed by educational, healthcare and social services. 
The Agency serves an area that experiences relatively low growth with new connections 
averaging less than 1 % over the long-term or approximately 130 connections per year. Since 
the Great Recession, new connections to the system have been low, with annual connections of 
approximately 63 per year for the last five years, driven up in part by higher connections in the 
current year resulting from the covid 19 migration. An overview of the general demographics of 
the area can be found in the Statistical Section. 

-iii-



Long-Term Financial Planning 

Rates are set at levels to meet operating and maintenance costs, capital costs (both debt 
service and capital expenditures), and minimum reserve fund balance requirements. The 
Agency uses a combination of cash and debt to fund its capital investments and to maintain 
stable rates. Annual rate adjustments through FY 2027 are projected to be 3. 7% on average 
(excluding rate collection for the Replenish Big Bear Project (see FY 2023 Major Initiatives 
below) and reflect the expected cost inflation during the projection period. These rate and 
inflation assumptions were developed in February 2022 and may need to be revised during the 
next budget development period as a result of unexpected, higher inflation. 

The Agency has focused on managing costs to inflationary levels which has resulted in 
relatively stable rates. Adequate depreciation funding, cost management, long-range planning 
and a history of effective financial management, have positioned the Agency to maintain stable 
and competitive rates and to adequately fund future capital projects. 

The Agency's capital projects, excluding the Replenish Big Bear Project (see FY 2023 Major 
Initiatives below) during the next five-year period through FY 2027 total approximately $3.9 
million (approximately $780,000 annual average) and through FY 2042 total approximately 
$26.0 million (approximately $1.3 million annual average). Over the long term, under the 
current capital improvement plan, approximately 70% of the Agency's capital investment is for 
maintenance with the remaining 30% for non-maintenance improvements. Over the next five 
years, the Agency's major capital projects (in approximate amounts) include $2.0 million for 
treatment plant improvements (rehabilitation of an oxidation ditch wall, the replacement of in­
plant headers and check valves, and the replacement of processing and pumping equipment); 
$440,000 for the replacement of transportation equipment; $430,000 of asphalt and paving 
including the Palomino Drive Repaving Project; $380,000 for the replacement of mobile 
pumping, information technology, laboratory, and electrical equipment; and $200,000 for pump 
station rehabilitation. 

Financial Policies and Practices 

The Agency has adopted financial policies related to debt, investment, and designated reserve 
funds. These policies guide the Agency through its budgeting and planning processes and 
provide a framework for the financial management of the Agency. The Agency maintains 
multiple designated reserve funds, including contingency (for variances from the budget), 
liquidity (for working capital), debt (for debt service) and capital and replacement (for current 
and future capital investment requirements). Target fund balances are set annually and are 
based on the Agency's operational and capital requirements. The Agency has not adopted a 
formal policy on a balanced budget. The Agency's practice is to balance the budget through the 
planned use of or contribution to the Agency's capital and replacement fund and structures its 
rates to cover its average recurring expenses. All references to Agency funds and designated 
fund balances are related to reserve funds maintained by the Agency for various operating and 
capital related purposes. 

-iv-



FY 2023 Major Initiatives 

Replacement of In-Plant Headers and Check Valves - The Agency will replace in-plant 
piping, including the gate and check valves from the return activated sludge pumps and the 
effluent pumps. 

North Shore Pump Station Well Rehabilitation with Bypass - This drywell will be upgraded 
with new piping, pumps, motors and check valves. 

New Pipeline Maps - Pipeline maps identifying the original locations of Agency facilities will be 
updated to improve accuracy for pipeline location. 

Replenish Big Bear - The Agency will continue its efforts on the Replenish Big Bear Project, a 
water reclamation project. The Agency began the preliminary engineering and environmental 
work in FY 2019, which has continued. In FY 2023, the Agency plans to make a substantial 
investment in the project with pre-construction activity expected to total $2.5 million during the 
period and will include engineering, environmental , pilot facility planning and implementation, 
and design work. The Governing Board approved a rate adjustment for FY 2023 to support 
costs associated with financing the FY 2023 investment. 

Awards and Acknowledgement 

Awards 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Big 
Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency for its annual comprehensive financial report for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. This is the 10th consecutive year BBARWA has received the 
award. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily 
readable and efficiently organized annual comprehensive financial report. This report must 
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current 
annual comprehensive financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement 
Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for 
another certificate. 

Acknowledgements 

We wish to extend our appreciation to our independent auditors, Rogers, Anderson, Malody & 
Scott, LLP for their assistance in the report preparation and to the Agency's Governing Board of 
Directors, for its support in upholding the highest standards of professionalism and financial 
accountability in the management of the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency. 

David Lawrence 
General Manager 

Jennifer McCullar 
Finance Manager 

-v-



Certificate of 
Achievement 
for Excellence 

in Finat1cial 
Reporting 

Pres.entetl to 

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewate.r Agency 
California 

Fer its Annual Comprehensive. 
Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 10, 2021 

-vi-



Governing Board of Directors 
As of June 30, 2022 

Rick Herrick 

Chair 

City of Big Bear Lake 

John Green 

Vice Chair 

Big Bear City CSD 

Jim Miller 

Director 

County Service Area 53 B 

Bynette Mote 

Director 

City of Big Bear Lake 

Larry Walsh 

Director 

Big Bear City CSD 

General Manager and Staff 

David Lawrence 

General Manager 

,7/~ \ 

t · .. 

Jennifer McCullar 

Finance Manager 
John Shimmin 

Plant Manager 

David Lawrence General Manager 909-584-4018 

Jennifer McCullar Finance Manager 909-584-4522 

John Shimmin Plant Manager 909-584-4520 

-vii-



This page left blank intentionally. 



Organization Chart 
(as of June 30, 2022) 

Residents of the Big Bear Valley 

Five-Member Governing Board 

Provides direction, sets policy and approves the annual Committees 
budget. 

Administrative 
Finance 

General Manage~ Operations 
lements policy at the direction of th .. 
Board . Plans, organizes, coordina 

administers all agency funclio 

. . .. .. . .. . .... 

Operations 

F.inance Manage~ 

Responsible fo~ financial 
anagement of the Agency 
ssists General Manager. 

Administration Laboratory -



This page left blank intentionally. 



FINANCIAL SECTION 



This page left blank intentionally. 



ROGERS, ANDERSON, MALODY & SCOT T , LLP 
CERTIFIED PUB LI C ACCOUNTANTS, SINCE I 948 

735 E. Carneg ie D r . Sui te I 00 

San Bern ardino , CA 92 408 

909 889 087 1 T 

909 889 536 1 F 

ramscpa. net 

PARTNERS 

Terry P. Shea. CPA 

Scott W. Manno. CPA. CGMA 

Leena Shanbhag, CPA. MST. CGMA 

Bradferd A Weleb,r. CPA. MBA. CGMA 

Jenny W , Liu. CPA. MST 

Brenda L. Od le, CPA. MST (Panner Emeritus) 

MANAGERS/ STAFF 

Ga,·denya Duran, CPA. CGMA 

Brianna Schultz, CPA, CGMA 

Seong-Hyea Lee. CPA. MBA 

Evelyn Mo,·em,n-Barcena, CPA 

Vernnica Hernandez, CPA 

Laura A1vizu. CPA 

X inlu Zoe Z hang, CPA, MSA 

John Maldonado. C PA, MSA 

T hao l e, CPA, MBA 

Julia Rod,·iguez Fuentes, CPA MSA 

Demi Hite. CPA 

MEMBERS 
Ame n ca n Institute o f 
Certifi ed Publ ic Accountants 

PCPS The A/CPA Affiance 
(or CPA Firms 

Gove rnmental A11dit 
Quality Cen tet 

£111/>foyee Benefit Plan 
Audit Quality Center 

California Soc iety o f 
Cenified Publ ic Accountants 

Proud Member of 
• AlliottGlobalAlliance·· 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Directors 
Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 
Big Bear City, California 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of the Big Bear Area Regional 
Wastewater Agency (the Agency), as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Agency's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the Agency, as of 
June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as accounting 
systems prescribed by the State Controller's Office and state regulations 
governing special districts. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAS), the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller's 
Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are required to be independent of the Agency and to meet our 
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Prior Year Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the Agency's 2021 financial statements, and we 
expressed an unmodified opinion in our report dated October 18, 2021 . In 
our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2021 is consistent, in all material respects, 
with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Matters 

As discussed in Note 4 to the financial statements, in the year ended 
June 30, 2022, the Agency adopted new accounting guidance under 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, 
Leases. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

-1-

STABILITY. ACCURACY. TRU ST. 



Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

The Agency's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency's ability to continue as 
a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material 
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Agency's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

-2-



Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis and other required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of the Agency. 
The schedule of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position - budget vs. actual is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The accompanying supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. 

Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying 
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual comprehensive financial 
report. The other information comprises the letter of transmittal and the statistical section but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements 
do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial 
statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are 
required to describe it in our report. 

-3-



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 13, 
2022 on our consideration of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency's 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

f.r, ~, .41'""7' ~ Ac,~ UP. 

San Bernardino, California 
October 13, 2022 

-4-



BIG BEAR AREA REGIONAL WASTEWATER AGENCY 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended June 30, 2022 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

This section of the financial statements for the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency provides a 
discussion of the Agency's financial performance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 (FY 2022). 
These comments should be read in conjunction with and are a supplement to the financial statements 
identified in the accompanying table of contents. 

Financial Overview 

The Agency's financial performance improved compared to the prior year due to the growth in operating 
revenues outpacing that of operating expenses. Operating revenues increased 4% compared to operating 
expenses which declined 13%, resulting in an increase in operating income during the period of 445%. 
Higher operating income combined with improved nonoperating income (expense) and much higher 
connection fee revenue resulted in a significant increase in change in net position for the period. 

The Agency's operating revenues increased $247,097 or 4% compared to the prior period. The increase 
was primarily due to a 3.9% increase in sewer user fees and an increase in connections to the system. 
Operating expenses decreased $701,321 or 13% over the prior period driven by a decrease of $507,645 
in salaries and benefits expense. Lower salaries and benefits expense resulted from accounting 
adjustments related to pension and OPEB expense of $453,902 in the current period. Other operating 
expenses were lower by $193,676 compared to the prior period and resulted from lower expenses across 
multiple line items. 

The Agency's nonoperating revenues increased $40,973 or 54% over the prior period largely due higher 
grant revenue (related to the Replenish Big Bear Project) offset by lower interest income. Nonoperating 
expenses decreased $336,793 or 57% due to much lower losses on asset disposals compared to the 
prior period. Overall, net nonoperating revenues (expenses) had a positive variance $377,586 for the 
period. 

Capital contributions (connection fee revenue) increased $79,420 or 28% during the period due to an 
increase in connections. Current period connections were 87, an increase of 19 and the highest annual 
increase since FY 2015. Higher connections during the period were likely driven by housing demand and 
compounded by COVID-19 migration. The connection fee (the rate charged per connection) remained 
unchanged during the period at $4,180 per connection. 

Change in net position increased $1,405,424 over the year-ago period due to the items noted above. 

The Agency had positive cash flow during the period of $1,137,588. The Agency generated approximately 
$2.1 million in cash from operations, connection fee revenue, and asset sale proceeds. These sources of 
cash were offset in part by capital expenditures and debt service of approximately $900,000. 

There are no restrictions, commitments, or other limitations that significantly affect the availability of 
resources for future use. 

-5-



BIG BEAR AREA REGIONAL WASTEWATER AGENCY 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

YearendedJune30, 2022 

Statement of Net Position 

The statement of net position presents information on the Agency's assets (including deferred outflows of 
resources) and liabilities (including deferred inflows of resources), with the difference reported as net 
position. The increases or decreases in net position, over time, may indicate whether the Agency's 
financial position is improving or deteriorating. 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

Assets : 

As of June 30, 
2022 2021 

2022 vs 2021 
Increase % 

(Decrease) Change 

Current and other assets $ 8,051,980 $ 6,856,457 $ 1,195,523 17% 
Capital assets , net 15,511,055 15,978,133 (467,078) -3% 
Other noncurrent assets 80,666 114,889 (34,223) -30% 

694,222 3% Total assets 23,643,701 22,949,479 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 966,288 1,107,257 (140,969) -13% 

Liabilities : 
Current liabilities 1,031,601 793,876 237,725 30% 
Noncurrent liabilities 3,916,870 6,336,150 (2,419,280) -38% 

Total liabilities 4,948,471 7,130,026 (2,181,555) -31% 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,774,296 429,555 1,344,741 313% 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 12,648,441 12,722,328 (73,887) -1% 
Unrestricted 5,238,781 3,774,827 1,463,954 39% 

Total net position i 17,887,222 i 16,497,155 i 1,390,067 8% 

Summary 

The Agency's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources by $17.9 million at fiscal year-end. This was up $1.4 million compared to the prior year driven 
by substantial decreases in noncurrent liabilities (pension and OPEB liabilities) and a large increase in 
current assets (cash and investments). 

Assets 

Total assets increased $694,222 or 3% over the prior period and was the result of an increase in current 
assets of $1 ,195,523 offset by a decrease in noncurrent assets of $501 ,301 . The increase in current 
assets was driven by higher cash and investments resulting from higher cash flow during the period. 
Higher cash flow was driven by lower operating expenses, lower capital investment, and higher 
connection fee revenue for the period. The decrease in noncurrent assets was driven by lower capital 
assets resulting primarily from a low level of capital investment during the period. Capitalized investment 
for the period was $364,483 compared to $883,556 in asset depreciation and amortization. 

-6-



BEAR AREA REGIONAL WASTEWATER AGENCY 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended June 30, 2022 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred outflows of resources decreased $140,969 or 13% and primarily reflects the net change from 
pension and OPES-related adjustments associated with changes in investment experience and 
contributions related to these plans. 

Total liabilities decreased $2,181,555 or 31 % from the prior period. The decrease was driven by a 
decrease in noncurrent liabilities of $2,419,280 reflecting lower pension and OPES liabilities as well as 
lower long-term debt. Pension and OPES liabilities decreased by $1,982,030 primarily due to high market 
returns for the twelve-months ended June 30, 2021 on invested assets related to these plans. The 
reduction in liabilities experienced in the current year is expected to reverse next year as a result of lower 
market returns in 2022. Long-term debt declined due to scheduled principal amortization. 

There are two components of the Agency's net position. The largest portion, net investment in capital 
assets, represents the Agency's investment in capital assets net of any related debt (debt used to finance 
the purchase of capital assets) and reflects the Agency's investment in property, plant and equipment. 
The remaining unrestricted net position is available to meet the Agency's ongoing obligations. The 
Agency's overall net position is simply a function of its assets and deferred outflows of resources minus 
its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. During the period, the Agency's net position increased by 
$1,390,067 primarily due to increases in assets and decreases in liabilities for the period, which have 
been previously noted. 

-7-

Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Net Position 

Deferred inflows of resources increased $1,344,741 or 313% driven mostly by pension and OPES-related 
adjustments associated with changes in investment experience. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

This statement primarily reflects the Agency's revenues and expenses, with the difference between the 
two reported as change in net position. The order of presentation reflects the Agency's primary 
operations, with operating revenues and operating expenses presented first, nonoperating revenues and 
expenses presented second and capital contributions presented last. The change in net position shows 
the residual revenue (on an accrual basis) that is available to contribute toward current and future capital 
(both investment and debt service) and reserve funding and is an indication of the adequacy of the 
Agency's rates. 



BIG BEAR AREA REGIONAL WASTEWATER AGENCY 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

YearendedJune30, 2022 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Summary 

The Agency's operating revenues increased $247,097 or 4% and operating expenses decreased 
$701,321 or 13%, resulting in an increase in operating income of $948,418 or 445%. This increase 
combined with improved nonoperating income (expense) and much higher connection fee revenue 
resulted in a $1,390,067 increase in change in net position for the period. 

Operating Revenues 

Changes in operating revenues are largely driven by changes in annual charges which make up 97% of 
total operating revenues. Annual charges are based on the established sewer user fee set by the 
Governing Board and the number of equivalent dwelling units connected to the system. Sewer user fees 
increased 3.9%, which when combined with slightly higher connections drove a 4% increase in annual 
charges, and the 4% overall increase in operating revenues. The increase in other revenue for the period 
was related to the sale of green energy credits generated by the solar production facil ity. 

OPERA TING REVENUES 

Operating revenues: 

As of June 30, 

2022 2021 

2022 vs 2021 
Increase % 

(Decrease) Change 

Annual charges $ 5,845,163 $ 5,602,113 $ 243,050 4% 

Standby fees 79,220 80,300 (1 ,080) -1% 

Rent and waste disposal fees 22,070 23,859 (1,789) -7% 

Other revenue 

Total operating revenues 

7,709 

$ 5,954,162 $ 

793 

5,707,065 

6,916 872% 

$ 247,097 ~

OPERATING REVENUES 

$6,000,000 

$5,900,000 

$5,800,000 

$5,700,000 

$5,600,000 

$5,500,000 

$5,400,000 

- Annual Charges 

$5,954,162 

$5,602,113 

2022 2021 

- Standby Fees 
- waste Disposal Fees an Rental Income - Other Operating Income 
....,_Total 

 

-8-



BIG BEAR AREA REGIONAL WASTEWATER AGENCY 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

YearendedJune30, 2022 

Operating Expenses 

Operating expenses decreased $701,321 or 13% compared to the year-ago period. The decrease was 
driven by lower collection, treatment, and disposal costs and lower salaries and benefits expense. The 
decrease in salaries and benefits expense was largely due to accounting adjustments associated with 
pension and OPEB expense. 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 

2022 vs 2021 

/ls of June 30 , Increase % 

2022 2021 (Decrease) Change 

Operating expenses : 
Collection , treatment, disposal $1,059,748 $1,366,184 $ (306,436) -22% 

Salaries and benefits 2,095,989 2,603,634 (507,645) -19% 

Contractual services 282,884 211,263 71 ,621 34% 

Perm its and fees 234,270 201,452 32,818 16% 

Mm inistration 235,848 213,060 22,788 11% 

Depreciation and amortization 883,955 898,422 (14,467) -2% 

Total operating expenses $4,792,694 $5,494,015 $ (701,321) -13% 

OPERATING EXPENSES BY MAJOR CATEGORY 

Depreci ation and amortization 

Administration 

Permits and fees 

Contractual services 

Salaries and benefits 

Collection, treatment, disposal 

� 2022 � 2021 

$- $500 ,000 $1,000,000$1 ,500,000$2,000,000$2,500,000$3,000,000 

-9-



BIG BEAR AREA REGIONAL WASTEWATER AGENCY 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

YearendedJune30, 2022 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
MAJOR CATEGORIES AS A PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL FY 2022 

� Collection, treatment, disposal 

� Salaries and benefits 

� Contractual services 

� Permits and fees 

� Administration 

� Depreciation and amortization 

Collection, Treatment and Disposal Expense 

Collection, treatment and disposal expense decreased $306,436 or 22% over the prior period. This 
decrease was driven by decreases in repairs and replacements, power, sludge removal, materials and 
supplies, and utilities expense. 

• Repairs and Replacement expense decreased $106,186 or 40% due to higher repairs and 
replacements in the prior period related to in-plant piping and a gate valve replacement along with 
hydro cleaning and video inspection of the Agency's mainline. 

• Power expense decreased $70,761 or 15%. Lower power expense was primarily related to the 
Agency's transition to solar power during the fiscal year. 

• Sludge removal expense decreased $48,299, or 15% due to lower sludge removal. Sludge tons 
decreased 16% or 794 tons over the prior period due in part to lower influent biochemical oxygen 
demand (a decrease to 300 compared to 312 in the prior period) and slightly lower flows (down 
32 million gallons or 4.5%). 

• Chemicals expense decreased $44,331 or 46% over the prior period due to lower odor control 
and polymer requirements combined with inventory on hand for both of these items at the end of 
the prior year. 

• Utilities expense decreased $39,569 or 64% when compared to the prior year. The decrease 
was due to higher solid waste disposal in the prior period which resulted from the removal and 
disposal of solid waste from Pond 5 at the treatment plant. The solid waste was removed to 
prepare for the fill and grading of Pond 5 associated with the solar facility installation. 

-10-



BIG BEAR AREA REGIONAL WASTEWATER AGENCY 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

YearendedJune30, 2022 

Salaries and Benefits Expense 

Salaries and benefits expense decreased $507,645 or 19% over the prior period. Excluding accounting 
adjustments related to GASB 68 and GASB 75, salaries and benefits expense increased $102,185 or 4%. 

Salaries and Benefits Expense Excluding Accounting Adjustments 

2022 vs 2021 

Salaries and benefits 
Accounting adjustments 
Salaries and benefits before adjustments 

As of June 30, 
2022 2021 

$ 2,095,989 $ 2,603,634 
453,902 (155,928) 

$ 2,549,891 $ 2,447,706 

Increase % 
(Decrease) Chanqe1 

$ (507,645) -19% 
609,830 .±. 

$ 102,185 4.%. 

1 Percent change is not provided if either the latest period or the year-ago period contains a loss or negative number. 

If actual performance is improved, a"+" is given. If worse, a"-" is given. 

The increase in salaries and benefits expense (excluding accounting adjustments) largely reflects a 
$66,805 or 4% increase in salaries and wages and a $36,989 or 4% increase in employee benefits 
expense. Salaries and wages were up due to annual merit and cost-of-living adjustments offset in part by 
lower overtime and accrued compensation pay. Employee benefits expense was up due to higher 
pension and medical premium expense. 

Contractual Services 

Contractual services expense increased $71,621 or 34% over the prior period. The increase was driven 
by an increase in professional services associated with a Rate Study and Arc Flash Study completed in 
the current period, and financial advisory services. 

Permits and Fees 

Permits and fees expense increased $32,818 or 16% largely due to a $28,897 increase in the Agency's 
State Water Resources Control Board annual discharge permit fees and a $3,814 change-in-use fee 
associated with the Agency's conversion of its generators to standby operation. 

Administration Expense 

Administration expense was up $22,788 or 11 % from the prior period reflecting an increase in insurance 
expense of $16,963 and an increase in education and training expense of $6,529. Higher insurance 
expense was related to higher general and property liability insurance stemming from higher reinsurance 
rates (insurance obtained by insurance companies to reduce their risks and mostly obtained from global 
companies) due to California wildfires. Higher education and training expense over the prior period was 
due to much lower travel and training in the prior period resulting from the covid 19 pandemic. 

-11-



BIG BEAR AREA REGIONAL WASTEWATER AGENCY 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

YearendedJune30, 2022 

Depreciation and amortization 

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $14,467 or 2% from the prior period and was due to a 
lower level of depreciable assets during the period. Average depreciable assets in the current year were 
approximately $15.7 million, down from $16.1 million in the prior period. 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) had a positive variance of $377,586 compared to the prior period 
primarily due to lower net loss on asset disposal (lower by $327,480), and higher nonoperating revenues 
driven by higher grant proceeds (higher by $109,233). The Agency incurred a large loss on assets in the 
prior period related to the write-off of prior generator rebuilds and the disposal of non-working equipment 
related to the covered drying bed operations. Higher grant proceeds in the current period are related to 
grant reimbursements associated with the Replenish Big Bear Project. 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

As of June 30, 

2022 2021 

2022 vs. 2021 
Increase % 

(Decrease) Change1 

Nonoperating revenues: 

Interest income (loss) -$70,341 -$1 ,670 -$68,671 

Lease revenue 52,741 52,592 149 0% 

Other 133.473 24,158 109,315 453% 

Total nonoperating revenues 115,873 75,080 40,793 54% 

Nonoperating expenses 
Net loss on asset disposal 33,519 360,999 -327,480 -91% 
Interest expense 109,214 122,823 -13,609 -11% 
Other 103,172 98,876 4,296 4% 
Amortization of bond cost 5,029 5,029 Q 0% 
Total nonoperating expenses 250,934 587,727 -336,793 -57% 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) -$135 061 -$512 6~Z $3ZZ 5as + 

·, Percent change is not provided if either the latest period or the year-ago period contains a loss or negative number. 
If the actual performance is improved when compared to the prior period, a"+" is given. If actual performance is 
worse when compared to the prior period, a"-" is given. 

Capital Contributions (Connection Fee Revenue) 

Connection fee revenue increased $79,420 or 28% over the prior year as the number of connections 
increased to 87 from 68 in the prior period, a change of 19 connections. The Agency's connection fee 
remained unchanged at $4, 180 per connection. 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS (CONNECTION FEE REVENUE) 

Capital Contributions 

As of June 30, 
2022 2021 

$ 363,660 $ 284,240 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

$ 79,420 

% 
Change 

28% 
Number of Connections 87 68 19 28% 

-12-



BIG BEAR AREA REGIONAL WASTEWATER AGENCY 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

YearendedJune30, 2022 

Capital Asset Activity 

The Agency's net capital assets decreased by $467,078 or 3% during the period. The net decrease in 
capital assets was due to capital expenditures falling below annual depreciation expense and asset 
disposals for the period. The Agency's capital expenditures during the period totaled $463,903, 
compared to annual depreciation expense of $883,556 and net asset disposals of $47,425. 

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 

Ps of June 30, 
2022 2021 

2022 vs 2021 
Increase % 

(Decrease) Change 

Capital assets , net $15,511 ,055 $15,978,133 $ (467,078) -3% 

Fiscal year 2022 was a relatively low capital investment period with $463,903 in capital expenditures 
during the period. Of this amount, $114,440 remained in progress at year end, and is related to the 
Agency's Grit System Rehabilitation Project. The remaining $349,463 in capital investment for the period 
was primarily related to the replacement of treatment plant pumping equipment and upgrades to the 
splitter box building, replacements and improvements to the Agency's flow measuring devices including 
the City of Big Bear Lake's flow meter and software, improvements to the interceptor system including the 
rebuild of station pumps, the installation of new communication and electrical equipment (new SCADA 
production server and ground fault monitor), the replacement of the station 3 generator and fuel system, 
and the replacement of an electric utility cart. The Agency carried over approximately $1 .5 million in 
capital expenditures planned for FY 2022 that will be completed in FY 2023. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES FY 2022 
($463,903) 

$500,000 
$450,000 
$400,000 $47,452 

$350,000 $50,289 
$300,000 $68,976 
$250,000 
$200,000 $84,060 

$1 50,000 
$100,000 $181,699 

$50,000 
$-

� Treatment Plant Eq uipment � Power Generat ing Equipment 
� Flow Measuring Devices � Interceptor System 
� Other E ui men! � Trans ortation E ui men! 

-13-



BIG BEAR AREA REGIONAL WASTEWATER AGENCY 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

YearendedJune30,2022 

For additional information related to the Agency's capital assets, see note 5 in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

Long-Term Debt, Net Pension and Net OPES Liability Activity 

The Agency decreased its long-term debt during the period by $398,160 or 12% which reflects regularly 
scheduled debt amortization. The Agency's net OPEB liability decreased by $707, 128 or 69% and the 
Agency's pension liability decreased by $1,274,902 or 54%. The net change in OPEB and pension 
liabilities reflects the net change during the period in the respective plan assets and plan liabilities. 

OUTSTANDING DEBT, NET 

Outstanding Debt, Net $ 

As of June 30, 

2022 2021 

2,885,070 $ 3,283,230 $ 

2022 vs 2021 
Increase % 

{Decrease} Change 

(398,160) -12% 
Net OPEB Liability $ 312,804 $ 1,019,932 $ (707,128) -69% 
Net Pension Liability $ 1,097,546 $ 2,372,448 $ (1,274,902) -54% 

For additional information, see note 6, 8 and 9 in the accompanying financial statements. 

Contacting the Agency 

The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers and creditors with a general overview 
of the Agency's finances and to show the Agency's accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
any questions regarding this report or need additional information, contact the Agency office at 909-584-
4018, 121 Palomino Drive, Big Bear City, California 92314. 

-14-



Basic Financial Statements 



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2022 
(With comparative data for prior year) 

Assets 2022 
Current assets: 

Cash and investments (Note 3) $ 7,832,439 $ 
Accounts receivable 113,005 
Lease receivable 35,130 
Due from member agencies 45,980 
Interest receivable 12,928 
Prepaid expenses 12,498 

Total current assets 8,051,980 

Noncurrent assets: 
Lease receivable (Note 4) 78,615 
Intangible assets, net of amortization (Note 5) 2,051 
Capital assets, not being depreciated (Note 5) 1,336,874 
Capital assets, net of depreciation (Note 5) 14,174,181 

Total noncurrent assets 15,591,721 

Total assets 23,643,701 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred charges on refunding 22,396 
Pension related (Note 8) 634,989 
OPEB related (Note 9) 308,903 

Total deferred outflows of resources 966,288 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 358,835 
Accrued salaries and benefits 39,507 
Accrued interest 12,598 
Long-term liabilities, due within one year (Note 6) 620,661 

Total current liabilities 1,031,601 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Net OPEB liability (Note 8) 312,804 
Net pension liability (Note 9) 1,097,546 
Long-term liabilities, due beyond one year (Note 6) 2,506,520 

Total noncurrent liabilities 3,916,870 

Total liabilities 4,948,471 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Lease related (Note 4) 122,117 
Pension related (Note 8) 1,137,648 
OPEB related (Note 9) 514,531 

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,774,296 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 12,648,441 
Unrestricted 5,238,781 

Total net position $ 17,887,222 $ 

2021 

6,694,851 
34,908 
53,361 
54,340 

4,768 
14,229 

6,856,457 

112,439 
2,450 

1,237,454 
14,740,679 
16,093,022 

22,949,479 

27,425 
672,101 
407,731 

1,107,257 

179,852 
34,899 
14,289 

564,836 
793,876 

1,019,932 
2,372,448 
2,943,770 
6,336,150 

7,130,026 

169,563 
212,548 

47,444 

429,555 

12,722,328 
3,774,827 

16,497,155 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-15-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 
(With comparative data for prior year) 

2022 2021 
Operating revenues 

Member agency fees $ 5,845,163 $ 5,602,113 
Standby charges 79,220 80,300 
Rental income 70 
Waste disposal fees 22,000 23,859 
Other revenues 7,709 793 

Total operating revenues 5,954,162 5,707,065 

Operating expenses 
Salaries and benefits 2,095,989 2,603,634 
Power 388,721 459,483 
Sludge removal 271,361 319,660 
Chemicals 51,788 96,119 
Materials and supplies 120,638 120,308 
Repairs and replacements 156,609 262,795 
Equipment rental 111 835 
Utilities 22,427 61,996 
Communications 48,093 44,988 
Contractual services - other 86,212 90,873 
Contractual services - professional 196,672 120,390 
Permits and fees 234,270 201,452 
Property tax 4,017 3,963 
Insurance 188,844 171,881 
Other operating 42,987 37,216 
Amortization 399 
Depreciation 883,556 898,422 

Total operating expenses 4,792,694 5,494,015 

Operating income 1,161,468 213,050 

Nonoperating revenues 
Investment income (loss) (70,341) (1,670) 
Lease revenue 52,741 52,592 
Other miscellaneous revenue 133 473 24158 

Total nonoperating revenues 115,873 75,080 

Nonoperating expenses 
Other 103,172 98,876 
Interest 114,243 127,852 
Net loss on capital asset disposals 33,519 360,999 

Total nonoperating expenses 250,934 587,727 

Income before contributions 1,026,407 (299,597) 

Capital contributions - connection charges 363,660 284,240 

Change in net position 1,390,067 (15,357) 

Net position, beginning of year, as restated (Note 13) 16,497,155 16,512,512 

Net position, end of year $ 17,887,222 $ 16,497,155 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-16-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 
(With comparative data for prior year) 

2022 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Cash received from customers and other sources $ 5,876,065 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (1,706,478) 
Cash payments for employees and benefits (2,528,090) 
Other non-operating revenues 133,473 
Other non-operating expenses (103,172) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,671,798 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Purchases and construction of capital assets (389,461) 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 13,906 
Proceeds from capital contributions 372,020 
Principal payments on lease liability (459) 
Principal payments on long-term debt (398,160) 
Interest paid on long-term debt (110,905) 

Net cash (used for) capital and related financing activities (513,059) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Investment income received (78,501) 
Payments received from lease receivables 57,350 

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities (21,151) 

Net change in cash and investments 1,137,588 

Cash and investments, beginning of year 6,694,851 

Cash and investments, end of year $ 7,832,439 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-17-

2021 

$ 5,793,381 
(2,153,792) 
(2,409,286) 

24,158 
(98,876) 

1,155,585 

(1,065,599) 
23,548 

254,980 

(384,975) 
(124,458) 

{1,296,504) 

13,974 
52,592 

66,566 

(74,353) 

6,769,204 

$ 6,694,851 



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 
(With comparative data for prior year) 

2022 
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Operating income $ 1,161,468 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 883,556 
Amortization 399 
Other revenues 133,473 
Other expense (103,172) 
Construction in process in accounts payable (74,442) 
(Increase) decrease in assets and deferred outflows 
of resources: 
Accounts receivable (78,097) 
Prepaid expenses 1,731 
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB related 98,828 
Deferred outflows of resources - pension related 37,112 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities and deferred inflows 
of resources: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 178,983 
Accrued salaries and benefits 4,608 
Deposits 
Compensated absences 17,194 
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB related 467,087 
Deferred inflows of resources - pension related 925,100 
Net OPEB liability (707,128) 
Net pension liability (1,274,902) 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,671,798 

Schedule of non-cash noncapital and capital related 
financing and investing activities 

Disposed capital assets, net book value $ (47,425) 

Construction in progress in accounts payable 74,442 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-18-

2021 

$ 213,050 

898,422 

24,158 
(98,876) 
(18,406) 

86,416 
742 

128,249 
3,252 

(144,169) 
4,965 

(100) 
33,453 

(23,080) 
(60,406) 

(142,527) 
250,442 

$ 1,155,585 

$ (384,549) 

18,406 



This page left blank intentionally. 



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 1: Reporting entity and significant accounting policies 

(a) Description of the reporting entity 

The Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency (the "Agency") is a joint powers agency 
comprised of three members: the Big Bear City Community Services District, the City of Big Bear 
Lake, and the County of San Bernardino on behalf of the County Service Area 53, Zone B. The 
Agency was formed in 1974 to construct and operate regional sewage treatment and disposal 
facilities for the entire Big Bear Valley. The service area for the Agency includes most of the Big 
Bear Valley in the San Bernardino Mountains in Western San Bernardino County. 

The Agency was formed under a joint exercise of powers agreement among the member entities 
for the purposes of planning and constructing sewer improvements to serve the member entities' 
service areas, obtaining State and Federal Clean Water grants, financing the local share of 
project costs, and operating the regional facilities. A regional treatment plant and disposal area 
were constructed and began operation in 1978. 

(b) Basis of accounting 

The Agency operates and reports as an enterprise utilizing the accrual method of accounting. 
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Operating 
revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the 
principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and 
gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies, taxes, and 
investment earnings result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Agency's policy to 
use unrestricted resources first, then restricted resources as they are needed. 

(c) Applicable accounting standards 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) establishes accounting and financial 
reporting standards for financial statements of state and local governments. The Agency has 
elected to follow all pronouncements of the GASB. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The 
principal operating revenues of the Agency's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales 
and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

(d) Investments 

Investments are reported in the accompanying statement of net position at fair value, except for 
certificates of deposit and investment contracts that are reported at cost because they are not 
transferable, and they have terms that are not affected by changes in market interest rates. 

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income 
reported for that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, 
and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments. 

-19-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 1: Reporting entity and significant accounting policies, (continued) 

(d) Investments, (continued) 

In accordance with the Agency's investment policy, the Agency may invest in the following: 

Certificates of Deposit 
U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds 
Local Agency Investment Fund 
Money Market Mutual Funds 

(e) Statement of cash flows 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined to be 
cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash and investments, and highly liquid investments 
with a maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase. For financial statement 
presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents are shown as cash and investments and 
restricted cash and investments, if applicable. 

(f) Restricted cash and investments 

Restricted cash and investments represent amounts held in trust at the bank and are set aside for 
construction costs as required by the loan agreement. Currently, the Agency has no restricted 
cash and investments. 

(g) Capital assets 

Assets purchased are recorded and capitalized at cost. Developer contributed capital assets are 
recorded at acquisition value at the time received. Donated capital assets are recorded at their 
acquisition value at the date of acquisition. The Agency's capitalization threshold for capital 
assets is $5,000. 

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. All other assets are depreciated or 
amortized using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Administration Building 
Treatment Plant 
Interceptor System 
Effluent Disposal Assets 
Power Generation Equipment 
Flow Measuring Devices 
Other Equipment 
Transportation Equipment 
Other Tangible Plant 
Studies and Maps 

-20-

Estimated Useful Life 
Range (in years) 

10 - 40 
15 - 99 
15 - 99 
30 - 50 
25 - 40 
10 - 15 

5 - 50 
15 - 20 
30 - 30 

5 - 40 



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 1: Reporting entity and significant accounting policies, (continued) 

(h) Employee leave benefits 

Regular employees of the Agency earn from 15 to 26 vacation days per year, depending on their 
length of employment, and 12 sick days per year. Temporary and seasonal employees of the 
Agency are not eligible for vacation leave benefits. 

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GMP), a liability is recorded for 
unused vacation and similar compensatory leave balance since the employees' entitlement to 
these balances are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that virtually all of 
these balances will be liquidated by either paid time off or payments upon termination or 
retirement. 

Under GMP, a liability is recorded for unused sick leave balances only to the extent that it is 
probable that the unused balances will result in termination payments. This is estimated by 
including in the liability the unused balances of employees currently entitled to receive termination 
payment, as well as those who are expected to become eligible to receive termination benefits as 
a result of continuing their employment with the Agency. Other amounts of unused sick leave are 
excluded from the liability since their payment is contingent solely upon the occurrence of a future 
event (illness) which is outside the control of the Agency and the employee. 

Upon termination or retirement, employees are entitled to receive compensation at their current 
base salary for all unused vacation and annual leave. Upon retirement or other honorable 
termination, an employee with a minimum of 5 continuous years of service is entitled to receive 
50% of the value of his or her unused sick leave based on the number of hours accumulated. 

The Agency has recorded a liability for the full 50% that is payable under the assumption that 
most employees will remain long enough to become eligible for the benefit. 

(i) Use of estimates 

In preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, 
management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

(j) Prior year amounts 

Selected information regarding the prior year has been included in the accompanying financial 
statements. This information has been included for comparison purposes only and does not 
represent a complete presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Agency's prior year financial 
statements, from which this selected financial data was derived. 

-21-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 1: Reporting entity and significant accounting policies, (continued) 

(k) Pension plan 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position and 
additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis 
as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments 
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. CalPERS audited 
financial statements are publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS' website at 
www.calpers.ca.gov. 

Generally accepted accounting principles requires that the reported results must pertain to liability 
and asset information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes 
are used. 

Valuation Date (VD) 
Measurement Date (MD) 
Measurement Period (MP) 

(I) Inventory 

June 30, 2020 
June 30, 2021 
July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method and consist of expendable 
supplies. 

(m) Contributed capital 

Capital contributions typically consist of connection fees associated with the member agencies. 
The Due from member agencies account balance consists of connection fees still owed by the 
member agencies as of the fiscal year end. 

(n) Other postemployment benefit plan (OPEBJ 

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position and additions 
to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been determined by an actuary. Investments 
are reported at fair value. 

GASB 75 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within 
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used. 

Valuation Date (VD) 
Measurement Date (MD) 
Measurement Period (MP) 

(o) Jointly governed organization 

June 30, 2021 
June 30, 2021 
June 30, 2020, to June 30, 2021 

In 2017, the Agency joined the Ground Water Sustainability Agency for the Bear Valley Basin 
(BVBGSA). The BVBGSA will enable the Agency to exercise the powers common and to work 
cooperatively and efficiently to implement the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act's 
requirements and provides a better opportunity for implementation of a recycled wastewater 
project. 

-22-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 2: Budgetary data 

During March, the General Manager submits to the Board of Directors a proposed operating 
budget for the fiscal year commencing July 1. The budget includes proposed expenses and 
estimated revenues. Prior to May 1, the budget is enacted legally through passage of an 
appropriation resolution. The Board of Directors must approve revisions that alter total 
appropriations. All appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end unless the Board of Directors takes 
formal action to continue the appropriation into the following fiscal year. 

NOTE 3: Cash and investments 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2022 are classified in the accompanying financial 
statements as follows: 

Statement of net position: 
Cash and investments 

Total cash and investments 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2022 consist of the following: 
Cash on hand 
Deposits with financial institutions 
Investments 

Total cash and investments 

Investments authorized by debt agreements 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

7,832,439 

7,832,439 

600 
576,512 

7,255,327 

7,832,439 

Investments of debt proceeds held by the loan trustee are governed by provisions of the loan 
agreement rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the Agency's 
investment policy. The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized for 
investments held by loan trustee. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt 
agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

Authorized 
investment type 

Money Market Mutual Funds investing 
in securities directly or indirectly 
guaranteed by the United States of 
America or an agency thereof 

-23-

Maximum 
maturity 

N/A 

Maximum 
percentage 

allowed 

None 

Maximum 
investment 

in one issuer 

None 



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 3: Cash and investments, (continued) 

Fair value measurements 

The Agency categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. 

The Agency does not have any recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2022. The 
Local Agency Investment Fund (Fund) of $7,255,327 is not subject to the fair value hierarchy. 

Investments authorized by the California Government Code and the Agency's investment policy 

The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized for the Agency by the 
California Government Code and the Agency's investment policy. The table also identifies certain 
provisions of the California Government Code (or the Agency's investment policy, if more 
restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table 
does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the 
provisions of debt agreements of the Agency, rather than the general provisions of the California 
Government Code or the Agency's investment policy. 

Authorized by Maximum Maximum 
Investment types investment Maximum percentage investment 

authorized by State law 

Local Agency Bonds 

policy maturity* of portfolio* in one issuer* 

No 5 years None None 
U.S. Treasury Obligations Yes 2 years None None 
U.S. Agency Securities No 5 years None None 
Banker's Acceptances No 180 days 40% 30% 
Commercial Paper No 270 days 25% 10% 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit No 2 years 30% None 
Repurchase Agreements No 1 year None None 
Reverse Repurchase Agreements No 92 days 20% of base value None 
Medium-Term Notes No 5 years 30% None 
Mutual Funds No N/A 20% 10% 
Money Market Mutual Funds Yes N/A 20% 10% 
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities No 5 years 20% None 
County Pooled Investment Funds No N/A None None 
Local Agency Investment Fund Yes N/A None $ 75 Million 
Certificate of Deposits Yes 2 years 30% None 
JPA Pools (other investment pools) No N/A None None 

* Based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, whichever is more restrictive. 

-24-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 3: Cash and investments, (continued) 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of 
its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the Agency manages its 
exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter-term and longer-term 
investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing 
or earning close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity 
needed for operations. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Agency's investments (including 
investments held by bond trustee, if any) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the 
following table that shows the distribution of the Agency's investments by maturity: 

Remaining maturing (in months) 
More than 

Investment type Total 12 or less 13 to 24 25 to 60 60 

State investment pool $ 7,255,327 $ 7,255,327 $ $ $ 
===== 

Credit risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the 
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally 
recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by 
(where applicable) the California Government Code, the Agency's investment policy, or debt 
agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type. 

Minimum Exempt Rating as of year end 
legal from Not 

Investment type Total rating disclosure AAA Aa rated 

State investment pool $ 7,255,327 N/A $ $ - $ - $7,255,327 

Concentration of credit risk 

The investment policy of the Agency contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in 
any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. The Agency did not 
have any investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and 
external investment pools) that represents 5% or more of total Agency investments. 

-25-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 3: Cash and investments, (continued) 

Custodial credit risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for 
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a 
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the 
Agency's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the 
exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for 
deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits 
made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool 
held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The 
fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total 
amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure 
Agency deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the 
secured public deposits. As of June 30, 2022, the Agency's deposits with financial institutions are 
interest bearing, and have a limited insurance coverage with the federal deposit insurance 
corporation up to $250,000. Any amounts in excess of $250,000 per institution are collateralized 
by the bank with pledged securities. 

Investment in State investment pool 

The Agency is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is 
regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of 
California. The fair value of the Agency's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying 
financial statements at amounts based upon the Agency's pro-rata share of the fair value 
provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). 
The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, 
which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

LAIF is a special fund of the California State Treasury through which local governments may pool 
investments. The Agency may invest up to $75,000,000 in the fund. Investments in LAIF are 
highly liquid, as deposits can be converted to cash within 24 hours without loss of interest. 
Investments with LAIF are secured by the full faith and credit of the State of California. The 
average annual yield of LAIF during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was 0.371% and 
.500%, respectively. The carrying value and estimated fair value of the LAIF Pool at June 30, 
2022 and 2021 was $234,469,950,028 and $231,451,246,492 and $193,317,608,617 and 
$193,333,648,179, respectively. The Agency's share of the Pool at June 30, 2022 and 2021 was 
approximately 0.00309% and 0.00328%, respectively. Included in LAIF's investment portfolio at 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 are structured notes and asset-backed securities totaling 
$2,350,000,000 and $2,051,660,000, and $1,700,000,000 and $2,772,671,000, respectively 
currently available. The LAIF has oversight by the Local Investment Advisory Board. The LAIF 
Board consists of five members as designated by statute. 

-26-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE4: Lease receivable 

Pacific Bell Mobile SeNice 

On June 4, 1997, the Agency entered into a 35-month lease as Lessor for the use of 122 East Palomino 
Drive. An initial lease receivable was recorded in the amount of $34,440. As of June 30, 2022, the value 
of the lease receivable was paid in full. The lessee is required to make annual fixed payments of $17,117. 
The lease has an interest rate of 0.6240%. The land estimated useful life was O months as of the contract 
commencement. The value of the deferred inflow of resources as of June 30, 2022 was $10,891, and the 
Agency recognized lease revenue of $11,774 during the fiscal year. The most recent amendment to this 
agreement was executed on November 10, 2015, extending the lease for an additional 60 months with 
the lessee having 1 extension option(s), each for 60 months. The lessee had a termination period of 24 
months as of the lease commencement. 

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC 

On June 27, 2005, the Agency entered into a 59-month lease as Lessor for the use of 122 Palomino 
Drive. An initial lease receivable was recorded in the amount of $48,737. As of June 30, 2022, the value 
of the lease receivable is $30,311. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $779. The 
lease has an interest rate of 0. 7190%. The land estimated useful life was O months as of the contract 
commencement. The value of the deferred inflow of resources as of June 30, 2022 was $29,199, and the 
Agency recognized lease revenue of $9,769 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 5 extension option(s), 
each for 60 months, one extension is left remaining at June 30, 2022. 

BBARWA Lucerne Valley Lease 

On September 1, 2005, the Agency entered into a 62-month lease as Lessor for the use of BBARWA 
Lucerne Valley. An initial lease receivable was recorded in the amount of $133,833. As of June 30, 2022, 
the value of the lease receivable is $83,434. The lessee is required to make quarterly fixed payments of 
$6,525. The lease has an interest rate of 0.9480%. The land estimated useful life was O months as of the 
contract commencement. The value of the deferred inflow of resources as of June 30, 2022 was $82,027, 
and the Agency recognized lease revenue of $25,903 during the fiscal year. 

As of June 30, 2022, the Agency had total outstanding lease receivables of $113,745 and related 
deferred inflows of$122,117. 

The remainder of this page leff. intentionally blank. 

-27-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTES: Capital & intangible assets 

A summary of changes in capital assets of the Agency for the year ending June 30, 2022 is as 
follows: 

Beginning Ending 
balance Increases Decreases balance 

Capital assets, 
not being depreciated 

Land $ 1,037,626 $ $ $ 1,037,626 
Construction in Progress 199,828 114,440 {15,020} 299,248 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 1,237,454 114,440 (15,020) 1,336,874 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Administration Building 2,029,161 2,029,161 
Treatment Plant 16,729,113 75,285 (278,392) 16,526,006 
Interceptor System 3,654,354 50,289 3,704,643 
Effluent Disposal Assets 4,728,589 4,728,589 
Power Generation Equipment 2,263,603 89,009 2,352,612 
Flow Measuring Devices 140,957 76,461 (37,463) 179,955 
Other Equipment 2,121,273 49,262 (50,750) 2,119,785 
Transportation Equipment 554,880 24,177 (8,510) 570,547 
Other Tangible Plant 907,922 907,922 
Studies and Maps 106,425 106,425 

Total capital assets, 
being depreciated 33,236,277 364,483 {375,115} 33,225,645 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Administration Building (942,334) (60,581) (1,002,915) 
Treatment Plant (8,142,471) (441,936) 230,967 (8,353,440) 
Interceptor System (2,268,679) (60,293) (2,328,972) 
Effluent Disposal Assets (4,128,376) (65,793) (4,194,169) 
Power Generation Equipment (1,037,204) (111,966) (1,149,170) 
Flow Measuring Devices (80,134) (9,622) 37,463 (52,293) 
Other Equipment (1,104,702) (70,909) 50,750 (1,124,861) 
Transportation Equipment (307,785) (27,045) 8,510 (326,320) 
Other Tangible Plant (393,240) (34,361) (427,601) 
Studies and Maps {901673} {\050} {9\723} 

Total accumulated depreciation {1814951598} {8831556} 3271690 {1910511464} 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 14,740,679 {519,073} {47,425} 14,174,181 

Total capital assets, net $ 15,978,133 $ {404,633} $ {62,445} $ 15,511,055 

A summary of changes in intangible assets of the Agency for the year ending June 30, 2022 is as 
follows: 

Beginning 
balance Additions Deletions Ending Balance 

Intangible right to use asset $ 2,450 $ $ $ 2,450 
Accumulated amotization {399} {399} 
Lease asset, net of amortization $ 2,450 $ {399} $ $ 2,051 

-28-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 6: Long-term liabilities 

A summary of long-term liabilities of the Agency at June 30, 2022 is as follows: 

Beginning Ending Due within 

balance Additions Deletions balance one year 

Lon!J:term debt - direct borrowing_s: 

2011 refunding agreement $ 1,792,769 $ $ (302,421) $ 1,490,348 $ 312,483 

2018 installment purchase agreement 1,490,461 (95,739) 1,394,722 99,314 

Total direct borrowings 3,283,230 (398,160) 2,885,070 411,797 

Other lon!J:term liability_: 

Compensated absences 222,926 210,675 (193,481) 240,120 208,404 

Lease liability: 

Postage meter 2,450 (459) 1,991 460 

Total $ 3,508,606 $ 210,675 $ (592,100) $ 3,127,181 $ 620,661 

Due beyond 

one year 

$ 1,177,865 

1,295,408 

2,473,273 

31,716 

1,531 

$ 2,506,520 

2011 Refunding installment sale agreement financing with Compass Bank (2011 Refunding 
Agreement) - Direct Borrowing 

On November 15, 2011, the Agency refunded its outstanding obligations under 1) the 1998 
Association of Bay Area Governments Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds (a pooled 
financing program) Series B (the ABAG Bonds) and 2) the December 1, 2006 Loan Agreement 
between the Agency and Municipal Finance Corporation (the 2006 Agreement). The purpose of 
the original borrowings was to finance certain improvements to the Agency's wastewater system. 
The purpose of the 2011 refunding was to take advantage of the low interest-rate environment, 
and refinance the Agency's existing debt at a lower rate, while maintaining the same period to 
maturity. All Agency net revenues are irrevocably pledged for the loan repayments in accordance 
with the terms of the 2011 Refunding Agreement. In the event of default, the lender may declare 
the unpaid principal and accrued interests due and payable immediately. 

Total proceeds under the 2011 Refunding Agreement were $5,568,142, borrowed at an interest 
rate of 3.3%, compared to 5.0% and 4.45%, under the ABAG Bonds and 2006 Agreement, 
respectively. Total proceeds included a prepayment premium under the 2006 Agreement of 
$42,432 and issuance costs associated with the 2011 Refunding Agreement of $47,500. Amounts 
borrowed under the 2011 Refunding Agreement are payable in 30 semi-annual installments, over 
a 15-year period through November 15, 2026 with the first payment due May 15, 2012. The 
installment payments range from $576,084 to $179,554. The Agency may prepay the unpaid 
principal on the 2011 Refunding Agreement beginning November 15, 2016. Such prepayments 
beginning on such date and through November 14, 2021 are subject to a make-whole provision 
contained in the 2011 Refunding Agreement. The current refunding resulted in a difference 
between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $125,867. This 
difference is reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction to the 2011 
Refunding Agreement payable and is being amortized through November 15, 2026 using the 
straight-line method of amortization. 

-29-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 6: Long-term liabilities (continued) 

2018 Installment purchase agreement- Direct Borrowing 

On September 1, 2018, the Agency entered into an Installment Purchase Agreement (the 2018 
Installment Purchase Agreement), for $1,760,000 with BBVA Compass, an Alabama banking 
corporation (Bank), for the purpose of financing the acquisition and construction of certain 
improvements of the Agency's wastewater system. The 2018 Installment Purchase Agreement 
carries an interest rate of 3.70% on the unpaid principal with an ending term on the earlier of 
November 15, 2033 or the date upon which the installment payments shall be paid in full. All 
Agency net revenues are irrevocably pledged for the loan repayments in accordance with the 
terms of the 2018 Installment Purchase Agreement. In the event of default, the lender may 
declare the unpaid principal and accrued interests due and payable immediately and require 
officials of the Agency to charge and collect rates for services provided by the Agency and the 
System sufficient to meet all requirements of the Installment Purchase Agreement. 

The Agency previously entered into a certain Loan Agreement dated as of November 1, 2011 (the 
2011 Refunding agreement) by and between the Agency and the Bank under which the Agency 
pledged Net Revenues for the purpose of financing and refinancing certain improvements to the 
Agency's wastewater system. 

2011 Refunding Agreement and 2018 Installment Purchase Agreement debt covenants 

The Agency has covenanted to set rates, fees and charges for each fiscal year so as to yield net 
revenues equal to at least 120% of the annual debt service for such year. For the year ended 
June 30, 2022 the Agency's net revenues were 467% of the annual debt service, which exceeded 
the minimum requirement. The Agency also complied with all other covenants set forth in the 
2011 Refunding Agreement and 2018 Installment Purchase Agreement. 

Debt service requirements to maturity 

Fiscal 2011 Refunding Loan Agreement 2018 Installment Purchase Agreement 
y_ear Princieal Interest Total Princieal Interest Total 

2022-2023 $ 312,483 $ 46,625 $ 359,108 $ 99,314 $ 50,694 $ 150,008 
2023-2024 322,880 36,228 359,108 103,023 46,986 150,009 
2024-2025 333,623 25,485 359,108 106,870 43,139 150,009 
2025-2026 344,723 14,384 359,107 110,860 39,148 150,008 
2026-2027 176,639 2,915 179,554 115,000 35,008 150,008 
2027-2028 119,295 30,714 150,009 
2028-2029 123,750 26,259 150,009 
2029-2030 128,371 21,638 150,009 
2030-2031 133,164 16,844 150,008 
2031-2032 138,138 11,872 150,010 
2032-2033 143,295 6,713 150,008 
2033-2034 73,642 1,362 75,004 

Total $ 1,490,348 $ 125,637 $ 1,615,985 $ 1,394,722 $ 330,378 $ 1,725,100 

-30-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 6: Long-term liabilities (continued) 

Lease Liability - Postage meter 

On August 23, 2021, the Agency entered into a 63-month lease as Lessee for the use of a 
postage meter. An initial lease liability was recorded in the amount of $2,450. As of June 30, 
2022, the value of the lease liability is $1,991. The Agency is required to make quarterly fixed 
payments of $120. The lease has an interest rate of 1.09%. The equipment estimated useful life 
was months as of the contract commencement. The value of the right to use asset as of June 30, 
2022 of $2,450 with accumulated amortization of $339 is included with equipment on the note 4. 

Debt service requirements to maturity 

Fiscal 
year Pricipal Interest Total 

2022-2023 $ 460 $ 21 $ 481 
2023-2024 465 20 485 
2024-2025 470 15 485 
2025-2026 475 10 485 
2026-2027 121 5 126 

$ 1,991 $ 71 $ 2,062 

NOTE 7: Related-party transactions 

The Board of Directors of the Agency is composed of board members of the three government 
agencies that are the primary customers of the Agency. Two of the directors of the Big Bear Area 
Regional Wastewater Agency are directors of the Big Bear City Community Services District. Two 
directors are from the City of Big Bear Lake and one director is from the County of San 
Bernardino. The District, City and County serve as collecting agents for certain revenues of the 
Agency including annual charges, standby charges, and connection fee charges. 

The remainder of this page leff. intentionally blank. 

-31-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 8: Pension plan 

A. General information about the Pension plan 

Plan description 

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Public 
Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Plan or PERF C) 
administered by the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS.) The Plan 
consists of a miscellaneous pool and a safety pool (also referred to as "risk pools"), which are 
comprised of individual employer miscellaneous and safety rate plans, respectively. Plan assets 
may be used to pay benefits for any employer rate plan of the safety and miscellaneous pools. 
Accordingly, rate plans within the safety or miscellaneous pools are not separate plans under 
generally accepted accounting principles. Individual employers may sponsor more than one rate 
plan in the miscellaneous or safety risk pools. The Agency participates in two rate plans (both 
miscellaneous). Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and Agency 
resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension 
plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on 
the Cal PERS' website, at www.calpers.ca.gov. 

Benefits provided 

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments 
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits 
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. Members with 
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All 
members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 5 years of service. The death benefit is 
one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional 
Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments for each plan are applied as 
specified by the Public Employees' Retirement Law. 

The Plan operates under the provisions of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law 
(PERL), the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), and the 
regulations, procedures and policies adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The 
Plan's authority to establish and amend the benefit terms are set by the PERL and PEPRA, and 
may be amended by the California state legislature and in some cases require approval by the 
CalPERS Board. 

The Plan's provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2022, are summarized as follows: 

Hire date 
Benefit formula 
Benefit vesting schedule 
Benefit payments 
Retirement age 
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensations 
Required employee contribution rates (reporting period) 
Required employer contribution rates (reporting period) 

-32-

Prior to 
January 1, 2013 

2.7%@55 
5 years service 
monthly for life 

50-55 
2.0%to2.7% 

7.96% 
14.870% 

On or after 
January 1, 2013 

2%@62 
5 years service 
monthly for life 

52-67 
1.0% to 2.5% 

7.25% 
7.730% 



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 8: Pension plan, (continued) 

A. General information about the Pension plan, continued 

Contributions 

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the 
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan 
contributions are determined through CalPERS' annual actuarial valuation process. The 
actuarially determined rate is based on the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost 
allocated share of the risk pool's costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, and any 
unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute the difference between the 
actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. Employer contribution rates 
may change if plan contracts are amended. Payments made by the employer to satisfy 
contribution requirements that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member 
contribution requirements are classified as plan member contributions. Employer Contributions to 
the Plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 were $350,101. The actual employer payments 
of $310,799 made to CalPERS by the Agency during the measurement period ended June 30, 
2021 differed from the Agency's proportionate share of the employer's contribution of $426,405 
by $115,606, which is being amortized over the expected average remaining service lifetime in 
the Public Agency Cost Sharing Multiple Employer Plan. 

B. Net pension liability 

The Agency's net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the 
pension plan's fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of 
June 30, 2021, using an annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020 rolled forward to June 30, 
2021 using standard update procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used 
to determine the net pension liability is as follows. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability 

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of 
an actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2015, including updates to salary 
increase, mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report can be obtained at 
CalPERS' website, at www.calpers.ca.gov. 

Valuation Date June 30, 2020 
Measurement Date June 30, 2021 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of 

GASB68 
Asset Valuation Method Market Value of Assets 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate 7.15% 
Inflation 2.50% 
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service 
Mortality Rate Table 11 i Derived using CalPERS' membership data for all funds 
Post Retirement Benefit Increase The lesser of contract COLA or 2.50% until Purchasing Power 

Protection Allowance floor on purchasing power applies, 
2.50% thereafter. 

11 l The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific data. The probabilities of mortality are based on the 

2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. Pre-retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates indude 

15 years of projected mortality improvement using 90% of Scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries. For more 

details on this table, please refer to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report from 

December 2017 that can be found on the CalPERS website. 

-33-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 8: Pension plan, (continued) 

B. Net pension liability, continued 

Long-term Expected Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term 
and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using 
historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were 
calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building­
block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the 
present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by 
calculating the rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value 
of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The 
expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and 
adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses. 

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows: 

Assumed 
Asset Real Return Real Return 

Asset Class 1 Allocation Years 1 - 102 Years 11+3 

Public Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98% 
Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62% 
Inflation Assets 0.77% 1.81% 
Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23% 
Real Assets 13.0% 3.75% 4.93% 
Liquidity 1.0% (0.92%) 

Total 100.0% 

1 In the System's ACFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity 
is included in Short-Term Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both Global 
Equity Securities and Global Debt Securities. 

2 An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period 
3 An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period 

Change of assumptions 

There were no changes of assumptions for measurement date June 30, 2021. 

-34-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 8: Pension plan, (continued) 

B. Net pension liability, continued 

Discount rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERF C was 7.15%. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from 
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those 
assumptions, the Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. 

Subsequent Events 

On July 12, 2021, CalPERS reported a preliminary 21.3% net return on investments for fiscal 
year 2020-21. Based on the thresholds specified in CalPERS Funding Risk Mitigation policy, the 
excess return of 14.3% prescribes a reduction in investment volatility that corresponds to a 
reduction in the discount rate used for funding purposes of 0.20%, from 7.00% to 6.80%. Since 
CalPERS was in the final stages of the four-year Asset Liability Management (ALM) cycle, the 
board elected to defer any changes to the asset allocation until the ALM process concluded, and 
the board could make its final decision on the asset allocation in November 2021. 

On November 17, 2021, the board adopted a new strategic asset allocation. The new asset 
allocation along with the new capital market assumptions, economic assumptions and 
administrative expense assumption support a discount rate of 6.90% (net of investment expense 
but without a reduction for administrative expense) for financial reporting purposes. This includes 
a reduction in the price inflation assumption from 2.50% to 2.30% as recommended in the 
November 2021 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. This study 
also recommended modifications to retirement rates, termination rates, mortality rates and rates 
of salary increases that were adopted by the board. These new assumptions will be reflected in 
the GASB 68 accounting valuation reports for the June 30, 2022, measurement date. 

Pension plan fiduciary net position 

Information about the pension plan's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred 
inflows of resources, and fiduciary net position are presented in CalPERS' audited financial 
statements, which are publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS' website, at 
www.calpers.ca.gov. The plan's fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the plan's 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis used by the pension plan, which 
is the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Benefits and 
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

-35-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 8: Pension plan, (continued) 

C. Proportionate share of net pension liability 

The following table shows the Plan's proportionate share of the net pension liability over the 
measurement period. 

Increase {Decrease} 
Plan Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Plan Net Pension 

Liability Position Liability 
(a) (b) (c) = (a) - (b) 

Balance at: 6/30/2020 (VD) $ 11,545,251 $ 9,172,803 $ 2,372,448 
Balance at: 6/30/2021 (MD) 11,938,827 10,841,281 1,097,546 
Net changes during 2020-21 $ 393,576 $ 1,668,478 $ (1,274,902) 

Valuation Date (VD), Measurement Date (MD). 

The Agency's proportion of the net pension liability was determined by Cal PERS using the output 
from the Actuarial Valuation System and the fiduciary net position, as provided in the CalPERS 
Public Agency Cost-Sharing Allocation Methodology Report, which is a publicly available report 
that can be obtained at CalPERS' website, at www.calpers.ca.gov. The Agency's proportionate 
share of the net pension liability for the Miscellaneous Plan as of the June 30, 2020 and 2021 
measurement dates was as follows: 

Proportion share of NPL - June 30, 2020 
Proportion share of NPL - June 30, 2021 
Change - Increase (Decrease) 

0.05624% 
0.05780% 
0.00156% 

Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the 
discount rate 

The following presents the Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability of the Plan as 
of the measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 7 .15 percent, as well as what the 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point 
lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate: 

Miscellaneous Plan's 
Net Pension Liability 

Discount Rate - 1 % 
(6.15%) 

$ 2,673,840 

-36-

Current Discount Rate 
(7.15%) 

$ 1,097,546 

Discount Rate + 1 % 
(8.15%) 

$ (205,554) 



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 8: Pension plan, (continued) 

C. Proportionate share of net pension liability, continued 

Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Defe"ed Inflows of Resources 

Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net 
position are recognized in pension expense systematically over time. 

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss 
occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expense. 

The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss: 

Net difference between projected 5-year straight-line amortization 
and actual earnings on pension 
plan investments 

All other amounts Straight-line amortization over the expected average 
remaining service lives (EARSL) of all members that are 
provided with benefits (active, inactive and retired) as of the 
beginning of the measurement period 

The expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) is calculated by dividing the total future 
service years by the total number of plan participants (active, inactive, and retired) in the Public 
Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (PERF C). 

The EARSL for PERF C for the measurement period ending June 30, 2021 is 3.7 years, which 
was obtained by dividing the total service years of 561,622 (the sum of remaining service 
lifetimes of the active employees) by 150,648 (the total number of participants: active, inactive, 
and retired). Note that inactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes equal 
to 0. Also note that total future service is based on the members' probability of decrementing due 
to an event other than receiving a cash refund. 

D. Pension expense and deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions 

As of the start of the measurement period (July 1, 2020), the Agency's net pension liability was 
$2,372,448. For the measurement period ending in June 30, 2021 (the measurement date), the 
Agency incurred a pension expense of $37,412. 

-37-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 8: Pension plan, (continued) 

D. Pension expense and deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions, continued 

As of June 30, 2022, the Agency has deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions as follows: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience $ 123,078 $ 
Differences between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings 958,099 
Differences between Employer's Contributions and Proportionate 

179,549 
Share of Contributions 
Change in Employer's Proportion 161,810 
Pension Contributions Made Subsequent to Measurement Date 350,101 

$ 634,989 $ 1,137,648 

The amounts above are net of outflows and inflows recognized in the 2020-2021 measurement 
period expense. Contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $350,101 reported with 
deferred outflows of resources will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
upcoming fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in future pension expense as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30: 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

Thereafter 

E. Payable to the pension plan 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows/(lnflows) of 

Resources, Net 

(186,089) 
(190,097) 
(211,805) 
(264,769) 

At June 30, 2022, the Agency reported a payable of $-0- for the outstanding amount of 
contributions to the pension plan required for year then ended. 

-38-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 9: Other postemployment benefits plan 

Plan description 

The Agency has established a Retiree Healthcare Plan (OPEB Plan), and participates in an agent 
multiple-employer defined benefit retiree healthcare plan. Medical coverage is currently provided 
through CalPERS as permitted under the Public Employees' Medical and Hospital Care ACT 
(PEMCHA). This coverage is available for employees who satisfy the requirements for retirement 
under the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), which is either (a) attainment 
of age 50 or older (age 52 for PEPRA members) with at least five years of State or public agency 
service or (b) an approved disability retirement. A separate financial report is not prepared for the 
OPEB Plan. 

Benefits provided 

The Agency pays 100% of the medical insurance costs for eligible retirees and their eligible 
dependents not to exceed the pre-Medicare (basic) family premium rate for the highest cost HMO 
plan in the region. 

Employees retired prior to January 1, 2011 are also covered by the Agency's "Health Premium 
Reimbursement Plan" which, when combined with benefits provided by PEMCHA provides a 
benefit equal to 100% of the medical plan premiums (no maximum) for pre-2011 retirees and their 
dependents. Employees hired after January 1, 2020 who retire from the Agency with at least 5 
years of Agency service receive a percentage of the premium for employee and their dependents 
(up to 90% of the highest cost Region 3 HMO plan pre-Medicare family premium rate). The 
percentage received is based on years of service. 

Employees covered 

As of the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation date the following current and former employees were 
covered by the benefit terms under the OPEB Plan: 

Active employees 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 

Total 

Contributions 

15 

13 

28 

The Agency makes health premium contributions for eligible retirees that enroll in a CalPERS 
health plan during retirement. The current monthly amount paid by the Agency ranges from 
$360 - $1,727. These amounts change annually based on the retiree's health plan election and 
rates published by CalPERS. The Agency provided amounts are detailed in the Summary of 
Principal Plan Provisions. The annual contribution is based on the actuarially determined 
contribution. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Agency's cash contributions were 
$164,685, made for health reimbursement premiums to retirees, and the estimated implied 
subsidy was $68,444 resulting in total payments of $233,129. The Agency has established an 
Irrevocable Trust with CalPERS' California Employer's Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT). The 
Irrevocable Trust was required to fully implement the Agency's direction of prefunding the 
Agency's OPEB liability. 

-39-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 9: Other postemployment benefits plan, (continued) 

Net OPEB liability 

The Agency's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and the total OPEB liability 
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 
2021, based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions: 

Valuation Date 
Measurement Date 
Discount Rate 
Inflation 

Salary Increases 

Investment Rate of Return 
Mortality Rate 
Pre-Retirement Turnover Healthcare Trend Rate 

June 30, 2021 
June 30, 2021 
7.05% 
2.50% per year 
3.00% per year, used only to allocate the cost of benefits 
between service years 
6.95% 
Macleod Watts Scale 2020 
Medical plan premiums and claims are assumed to 
increase once each year 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major 
asset class are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Treasury inflation-protected securities 
Fixed income 
Global Equity 
REIT's 
Commodities 
Total 
* based on 2014 Capital Market Assumptions 

Change of Assumptions 

Target Allocation 

5% 
25% 
59% 

8% 
3% 

100% 

Long-term expected 
real rate of return* 

1.46% 
2.62% 
5.98% 
5.00% 
2.87% 

In 2021, demographic assumptions were updated based on a new CalPERS experience study; 
updated medical trend model and age-based premiums were applied which developed an implicit 
(pool) subsidy liability for retirees enrolled in Medicare plans, following updated guidance 
provided in Actuarial Standard of Practice #6. 

-40-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 9: Other postemployment benefits plan, (continued) 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.05% percent as of June 30, 
2021, net of Plan investment expenses and including inflation. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that Agency contributions will be made at rates equal to 
the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for 
current active and inactive employees and beneficiaries. Therefore, the long-term expected rate 
of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total OPEB liability. 

Changes in the OPEB Liability 

The changes in the net OPEB liability for the OPEB Plan are as follows: 

Balance at June 30, 2021 
(Measurement Date June 30, 2020) 

Total OPEB 
Liability (a) 

$ 3,337,764 

Changes recognized for the measurement period: 
Service Cost 118,066 
Interest on the total OPEB liability 234,811 
Changes of assumptions 17,881 
Plan experience differences (191,253) 
Contributions - employer 
Net investment income 
Benefit payments (250,348) 
Administrative expenses 

Net Changes 

Balance at June 30, 2022 
(Measurement Date June 30, 2021) 

(70,843) 

$ 3,266,921 

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position (b) 

$ 2,317,832 

250,348 
637,162 

(250,348) 
(877) 

636,285 

$ 2,954,117 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

NetOPEB 
Liability/(Asset) (c) 

= (a) - (b) 

$ 

$ 

1,019,932 

118,066 
234,811 

17,881 
(191,253) 
(250,348) 
(637,162) 

877 

(707,128) 

312,804 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Agency if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for 
measurement period ended June 30, 2021: 

Net OPEB Liability $ 

1% Decrease 
6.05% 

778,842 $ 

-41-

Current Discount Rate 
7.05% 

312,804 $ 

1% Increase 
8.05% 

(65,236) 



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 9: Other postemployment benefits plan, (continued) 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Agency if it were calculated using health care 
cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the 
current rate, for measurement period ended June 30, 2021: 

1% Decrease 

Net OPEB Liability $ (102,145) 

Current Healthcare Cost Trend 
Rates 

$ 312,804 

1% Increase 

$ 835,251 

Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are 
recognized in OPEB expense systematically over time. 

Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The 
remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. 

The recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss: 

Net difference between projected and 
actual trust earnings 

5 years 

All other amounts Straight-line recognition over the expected average 
remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of all members that 
are provided with benefits, determined as of the 
beginning of the Measurement Period. In determining the 
EARSL, all active, retired and inactive (vested) members 
are counted, with the latter two groups having 0 
remaining service years. 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Agency recognized OPEB expense of $91,916. A 
complete breakdown of OPEB expense is as follows: 

Description 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected earnings on assets 
Administrative expenses 
Recognized assumption changes 
Recognized differences in plan experience 
Recognized differences in projected and 

actual investments earnings 

Total OPEB expense 

-42-

Amount 
$ 118,066 

234,811 
(163,376) 

877 
32,893 

(49,792) 

(81,563) 

$ 91,916 



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 9: Other postemployment benefits plan, (continued) 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB, continued 

As of fiscal year, ended June 30, 2022, the Agency reported deferred outflows of resources 
related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows Inflows 

of Resources of Resources 

OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 233,129 $ 
Changes of assumptions 70,026 
Differences between expected and actual experience 5,748 187,533 
Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on OPEB plan investments 326,998 
Total $ 308,903 $ 514,531 

The $233,129 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming fiscal year. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as expense as 
follows: 

NOTE 10: 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30: 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

Thereafter 

Deferred compensation 

Deferred 
Outflows/(lnflows) of 

Resources, net 

$ (92,999) 
(82,812) 

(100,611) 
(116,885) 

(24,826) 
(20,624) 

The Agency has made available to its employees two deferred compensation plans (defined 
contribution plans), created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457, whereby 
employees authorize the Agency to defer a portion of their salary to be deposited in individual 
investment accounts. Funds may be withdrawn by participants upon termination of employment 
or retirement. If an employee elects to contribute a minimum of 6% of the employee's annual 
salary, the Agency will contribute 3% of the employee's annual salary. As of June 30, 2022, the 
deferred compensation assets were held in a trust account for the sole benefit of the employees 
and their beneficiaries, and accordingly have been excluded from the Agency's reported assets. 
The Agency's contribution to the plan for the current fiscal year is $45,799. 

-43-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 11: Net position 

The Agency's net position is comprised of the following components: 
2022 2021 

Net investment in capital assets: 
Intangible assets, net of amortization $ 2,051 $ 2,450 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 1,336,874 1,237,454 
Capital assets, net of depreciation 14,174,181 14,740,679 

Debt related to capital assets 
2011 Refunding agreement (1,490,348) (1 ,792,769) 
2018 Installment purchase agreement (1 ,394,722) (1,490,461) 
Copier lease (1 ,991) (2,450) 
Less: Deferred charges on refunding 22,396 27,425 

Net investment in capital assets 12,648,441 12,722,328 

Un restricted 5,238,781 3,774,827 

Total net position $ 17,887,222 $ 16,497,155 

NOTE 12: Risk management 

The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets, errors and omissions and natural disasters. The Agency has acquired 
insurance coverage through Special District Risk Management Authority to finance various risks 
such as workers' compensation, general liability and property damage. 

Insurance policies are purchased for the following exposures with the deductible or the amount of 
risk retention: 

General and Auto Liability, Public Officials' and Employees' Errors and Omissions and 
Employment Practices Liability: coverage of $5,000,000, with $500 deductible per occurrence for 
general liability, $1,000 deductible per occurrence for auto liability, and 50% co-insurance of cost 
expended by SDRMA, in excess of $10,000 up to $50,000 for employment-related claims. 

Employee Dishonesty: purchased from National Union Fire Insurance Company - coverage of 
$1,000,000 per loss and includes public employee dishonesty, forgery or alteration and theft, 
disappearance and destruction. 

Properly Loss: purchased from Lexington Insurance Company - coverage of $1,000,000,000 per 
occurrence with $1,000 deductible per occurrence. 

Boiler and Machinery: purchased from Lexington Insurance Company - coverage of 
$100,000,000 per occurrence with $1,000 deductible. 

Public Officials Personal Liability: coverage of $500,000 per occurrence, with an annual 
aggregate of $500,000 per each elected/appointed official, with deductible of $1,000 per claim; 

Worker's compensation: statutory limits per occurrence and $5,000,000 for employer's liability 
coverage. 

The amounts of settlements did not exceed insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal 
years. 

-44-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

NOTE 13: Change in accounting principle 

The Agency's net position was restated as follows due to the implementation of GASB 87: 

Beginning net position, as previously reported $ 16,500,915 

Restatement due to change in accounting principle (3,760) 

Beginning net position, as restated $ 16,497,155 

The remainder of this page leff. intentionally blank. 

-45-



This page left blank intentionally. 



Required Supplementary Information 



This page left blank intentionally. 



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Schedule of the Agency's Proportionate Share of the Plan's Net Pension Liability and 
Related Ratios as of the Measurement Date 

Last 1 O Years* 

Employer's 
proportionate 
share of the Pension plan's 

Employer's collective net fiduciary net 
Employer's proportionate pension liability as position as a 

proportion of the share of the a percentage of percentage of the 
Measurement collective net collective net Employer's the employer's total pension 

date eension liabili!x1 eension liabili!x covered ea~roll covered ea~roll liabili!x 

6/30/2014 0.02306% $ 1,435,154 $ 958,945 149.66% 83.03% 
6/30/2015 0.03971% 1,089,410 1,082,228 100.66% 87.32% 
6/30/2016 0.04580% 1,590,864 1,100,884 144.51% 81.05% 
6/30/2017 0.01942% 1,925,676 1,097,657 175.44% 79.48% 
6/30/2018 0.01953% 1,881,571 1,099,489 171.13% 81.37% 
6/30/2019 0.02071% 2,122,006 1,159,628 182.99% 80.46% 
6/30/2020 0.02181% 2,372,448 1,279,546 185.41% 79.45% 
6/30/2021 0.02029% 1,097,546 1,300,655 84.38% 90.81% 

1 Proportion of the net pension liability represents the plan's proportion of PERF C, which includes both the 
Miscellaneous and Safety Risk Pools excluding the 1959 Survivors Risk Pool. 

* Measurement date 6/30/2014 (fiscal year 2015) was the first year of implementation. Additional years will be 
presented as information becomes available. 

-46-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions 
Last 1 O Years* 

Contributions in 
Relation to the 

Actuarially Actuarially 
Determined Determined 

Fiscal year Contribution Contribution 

June 30, 2015 $ 179,263 $ (179,263) 
June 30, 2016 157,379 (157,379) 
June 30, 2017 171,414 (171,414) 
June 30, 2018 186,220 (186,220) 
June 30, 2019 223,484 (223,484) 
June 30, 2020 272,345 (272,345) 
June 30, 2021 310,799 (310,799) 
June 30, 2022 350,101 (350,101) 

Notes to Schedule: 

Contribution Contributions as a 
Deficiency Percentage of 
(Excess) Covered Payroll Covered Payroll 

$ $ 1,082,228 16.56% 
1,100,884 14.30% 
1,097,657 15.62% 
1,099,489 16.94% 
1,159,628 19.27% 
1,279,546 21.28% 
1,300,655 23.90% 
1,392,498 25.14% 

Changes in Benefit Terms: There were no changes to benefit terms that applied to all members of the Public Agency Pool. 
Additionally, the figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from Golden Handshakes that occurred after 
the June 30, 2020 valuation date, unless the liability impact is deemed to be material to the Public Agency Pool. 

Changes in Assumptions: There were no assumption changes for 2021. For 2020, the Plan adopted a new amortization policy 
effective with the 2019 actuarial valuation. The new amortization policy shortens the period over which actuarial gains and losses are 
amortized from 30 years to 20 years with the payments computed as a level dollar amount. In addition, the new policy does not utilize 
a five-year ramp-up and ramp-down on UAL bases attributable to assumption changes and non-investment gains/losses. The new 
policy also does not utilize a five-year ramp-down on investment gains/losses. These changes apply only to new UAL bases 
established on or after June 30, 2019. There were no changes in assumptions in 2019. In 2018, demographic assumptions and 
inflation rate were changed in accordance to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions December 2017. 
There were no changes in the discount rate in 2019. In 2017, the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.65 percent to 7.15 
percent. In 2016, there were no changes in the discount rate. In 2015, amounts reported reflect an adjustment of the discount rate 
from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 7.65 percent (without a reduction for pension plan administrative expense). In 
2014, amounts reported were based on the 7.5 percent discount rate. 

-47-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
Last 1 O years* 

Measurement Date 2017 2018 2019 

Total OPEB Liability 
Service Cost $ 70,271 $ 92,607 $ 101,392 
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 197,835 204,015 213,507 
Actual and expected experience difference (139,764) 9,864 
Changes in assumptions 70,862 100,635 14,085 
Benefit payments !134,557} !138,739} !177,938} 
Net change in Total OPEB Liability 64,647 258,518 160,910 
Total OPEB Liability • beginning 2,714,518 2,779,165 3,037,683 
Total OPEB Liability • ending (a) 2,779,165 3,037,683 3,198,593 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Contribution - employer 419,453 425,765 241,291 
Net investment income 114,707 113,645 117,953 
Benefit payments (134,557) (138,739) (177,938) 
Administrative expense !581} !2,726} !403} 
Net change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 399,022 397,945 180,903 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position • beginning 1,058,264 1,457,286 1,855,231 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - ending (b) 1,457,286 1,855,231 2,036,134 

Net OPEB Liability • ending (a) • (b) $ 1,321,879 $ 1,182,452 $ 1,162,459 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 52.44% 61.07% 63.66% 

Covered-employee payroll $ 1,097,657 $ 1,099,489 $ 1,135,222 

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 120.43% 107.55% 102.40% 

Notes to schedule· 
Contributions are fixed and not based on a measure of pay, therefore covered-employee payroll is used in the schedule. 

The following assumptions were changed from the prior valuation: 

Discount rate: In 2019, the discount rate was changed from 7.28% to 7.05% 

2020 2021 

$ 114,627 $ 118,066 
226,464 234,811 

(191,253) 
17,881 

!201,920} !250,348} 
139,171 (70,843) 

3,198,593 3,337,764 
3,337,764 3,266,921 

410,141 250,348 
74,474 637,162 

(201,920) (250,348) 
!997} !877} 

281,698 636,285 
2,036,134 2,317,832 
2,317,832 2,954,117 

$ 1,019,932 $ 312,804 

69.44% 90.43% 

$ 1,317,806 $ 1,346,813 

77.40% 23.23% 

Change in assumptions: In 2021, demographic assumptions were updated based on a new CalPERS experience study; updated medical trend model and age-
based premiums were applied which developed an implicit (pool) subsidy liability for retirees enrolled in Medicare plans, following updated guidance provided in 
Actuarial Standard of Practice #6. 

*Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as 
information becomes available. 

-48-



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions 
Last 1 O years* 

Contribution as a 
Actuarially Contribution percentage of 

Determined Contributions in deficiency/ Covered- covered employee 
Fiscal Year Contributions !ADCl relation to the ADC !excessl emelo~ee ea~roll ea~roll 

2018 $ 198,107 $ (425,765) $ (227,658) $ 1,099,489 38.72% 
2019 203,772 (241 ,291) (37,519) 1,135,222 21 .25% 
2020 210,141 (410,141) (200,000) 1,317,806 31 .12% 
2021 205,464 (250,348) (44,884) 1,346,813 18.59% 
2022 206,603 (233,129) (26,526) 1,443,194 16.15% 

Notes to schedule: 
Contributions are fixed and not made based on a measure of pay, therefore covered employee payroll is used in the schedule. 

Actuarial methods and assumptions used to set actuarially determined contributions for fiscal year 2022 were from the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation. 

Methods and assumptions used to detennine contributions: 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 
Amortization Methodology Level % of Pay, 15 years closed 
Asset Valuation Method Market value of assets 
Discount Rate 7.05% 
Inflation 2.50% per annum 
Payroll Growth 3.00% per year; since benefits are not related to pay, this is used only to allocate the cost of benefits between 

service years 
Investment Rate of Return 6.95% 
Healthcare Trend 5.40%, decreasing to 4.0% by 2076 
Retirement Age From 50 to 75 

Mortality CalPERS 2017 Experience Study, Projected with MW Scale 2020 

*Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future years' information will be displayed up to 1 0 
years as information becomes available. 

-49-



Supplementary Information 



This page left blank intentionally. 



Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Budget vs. Actual 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 

2022 
2022 Final budget Variance 2021 

Actual {unaudited} with budget Actual 
Operating revenues 

Member agency fees $ 5,845,163 $ 5,845,163 $ $ 5,602,113 
Standby charges 79,220 21,690 57,530 80,300 
Rental income 70 53,386 (53,316) 
Waste disposal fees 22,000 79,220 (57,220) 23,859 
Other revenues 7,709 7,709 793 

Total operating revenues 5,954,162 5,999,459 {45,297} 5,707,065 

Operating expenses 
Salaries and benefits 2,095,989 2,664,027 (568,038) 2,603,634 
Power 388,721 463,514 (74,793) 459,483 
Sludge removal 271,361 319,488 (48,127) 319,660 
Chemicals 51,788 83,557 (31,769) 96,119 
Materials and supplies 120,638 133,744 (13,106) 120,308 
Repairs and replacements 156,609 258,642 (102,033) 262,795 
Equipment rental 111 853 (742) 835 
Utilities 22,427 30,388 (7,961) 61,996 
Communications 48,093 55,592 (7,499) 44,988 
Contractual services - other 86,212 94,563 (8,351) 90,873 
Contractual services - professional 196,672 252,383 (55,711) 120,390 
Permits and fees 234,270 208,484 25,786 201,452 
Property tax 4,017 4,016 1 3,963 
Insurance 188,844 229,214 (40,370) 171,881 
Other operating 42,987 60,613 (17,626) 37,216 
Amortization 399 399 
Depreciation 883,556 905,147 {21,591} 898,422 

Total operating expenses 4,792,694 5,764,225 {971,531} 5,494,015 

Operating income 1,161,468 235,234 926,234 213,050 

Nonoperating revenues 
Investment income (loss) (70,341) 10,171 (80,512) (1,670) 
Lease revenue 52,741 52,741 52,592 
Other miscellaneous revenue 133,473 513,874 {380,401} 24,158 

Total nonoperating revenues 115,873 524,045 {408,172} 75,080 

Nonoperating expenses 
Other 103,172 766,087 (662,915) 98,876 
Interest 114,243 115,944 (1,701) 127,852 
Net loss on capital asset disposals 33,519 33,519 360,999 

Total nonoperating expenses 250,934 882,031 {631,097} 587,727 

Income before contributions 1,026,407 (122,752) 1,149,159 (299,597) 

Capital contributions -
connection charges 363,660 188,100 175,560 284,240 

Change in net position 1,390,067 65,348 1,324,719 (15,357) 

Net position, beginning of year, as restated 16,497,155 16,497,155 16,512,512 

Net position, end of year $ 17,887,222 $ 16,562,503 $ 1,324,719 $ 16,497,155 

-50-



This page left blank intentionally. 



ROGERS, ANDERSON, MALODY & SCOT T , LLP 
CERTIFIED PUB LI C ACCOUNTANTS, SINCE I 948 

735 E. Carneg ie D r . Sui te I 00 

San Bern ardino , CA 92 408 

909 889 087 1 T 

909 889 536 1 F 

ramscpa. net 

PARTNERS 

Terry P. Shea. CPA 

Scott W. Manno. CPA. CGMA 

Leena Shanbhag, CPA. MST. CGMA 

Bradferd A Weleb,r. CPA. MBA. CGMA 

Jenny W , Liu. CPA. MST 

Brenda L. Od le, CPA. MST (Panner Emeritus) 

MANAGERS/ STAFF 

Ga,·denya Duran, CPA. CGMA 

Brianna Schultz, CPA, CGMA 

Seong-Hyea Lee. CPA. MBA 

Evelyn Mo,·em,n-Barcena, CPA 

Vernnica Hernandez, CPA 

Laura A1vizu. CPA 

X inlu Zoe Z hang, CPA, MSA 

John Maldonado. C PA, MSA 

T hao l e, CPA, MBA 

Julia Rod,·iguez Fuentes, CPA MSA 

Demi Hite. CPA 

MEMBERS 
Ame n ca n Institute o f 
Certifi ed Publ ic Accountants 

PCPS The A/CPA Affiance 
(or CPA Firms 

Gove rnmental A11dit 
Quality Cen tet 

£111/>foyee Benefit Plan 
Audit Quality Center 

California Soc iety o f 
Cenified Publ ic Accountants 

Proud Member of 
• AlliottGlobalAlliance·· 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MA TIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Directors 
Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 
Big Bear City, California 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Big 
Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency (the Agency), as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements and 
have issued our report thereon dated October 13, 2022. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we 
considered the Agency's internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) as a basis for designing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Agency's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a 
control does not allow management or employees in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Agency's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance . 

-51-

STABILITY. ACCURACY. TRU ST. 



Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency's internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

,,,,_, ~,~A- k11✓ UP. 

San Bernardino, California 
October 13, 2022 

-52-



STATISTICAL SECTION 



This page left blank intentionally. 



STATISTICAL SECTION 

Overview 

The objective of the statistical section is to provide users with historical perspective and detail so 
that they may better understand and assess the Agency's economic condition. Please note that all 
information presented has been sourced from Agency financial and operating information unless 
otherwise noted. 

This section contains 10-year historical information related to the Agency's financial performance 
and is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing the Agency's financial position and 
how it has changed over time. 

This section contains information related to the Agency's primary operating revenues and is 
intended to assist users in understanding and assessing the Agency's capacity to generate 
revenues and its ability to collect revenues. 

This section contains information related to the Agency's ability to service its current debt 
outstanding and provides an indication of the Agency's ability to issue additional debt. 

This section contains information related to the socioeconomic environment in which the Agency 
operates. This information facilitates comparisons of financial statement information over time and 
among similar government agencies. 

All years presented are for the fiscal year ending June 30. 

Financial Trends 

Revenue Capacity 

Debt Capacity 

Demographic and Economic Information 

Financial Trends 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT - 10 FISCAL YEARS 

~ 2l2.1i 2l2li llJj 2l!.1l: lll! ~ ~ ~ ~ 
NET POSITION': 
Net investment 

in capital asset, $1t190,1l3 $12,962,116 $12,812,871 $12,947,480 $12,864,383 $12,092,923 $1l,947,850 $12,541,345 $12,722,328 $12,648,441 
Unrestricted 

net position !Ul!ll!.!lQ§, ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ milZ1 ~ 
Total $17 279 908 $ fl QQ3 467 $17,402,574 $:8 269 639 $:86647DD $:15906974 $1iQ92561 $1i 51i 272 $1i497155 $17 B67 222 

1 The above data was extracted from the Agency's financial statements. Net position was restated in fiscal years 2007, 2011, 2013, 2015, and 2021 to reflect a 
reduction in assels, the Agency's PERS side fund liability, the implementation of GASB 65, the implementation of GASB 68, the implementation of GASB 75, and the 
implementation of GASB 87, respectively. 

-53-



CHANGE IN NET POSITION-10 FISCAL YEARS 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Annual Charges $4,688,312 $4,778,215 $4,979,690 $4,991 ,166 $5,007,070 $5,091 ,576 $5,251,542 $5,437,076 $5,602,113 
Standby Fees 92,430 91 ,400 90,860 89,250 86,930 85,180 83,200 81 ,660 80,300 
Rent Waste Disposal Fees 68,351 70,178 68,120 72,101 71 ,951 73,562 71,679 70,610 23,859 
Other fil! bl!QZ 24,575 ~ 488 1,fil.§ 765 .Q 793 
Total 4,849,143 4,941 ,800 5,163,245 5,157,621 5,166,439 5,252,234 5,407,186 5,589,346 5,707,065 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Salaries and Benefits 1.812,835 1,797.691 1,745,042 1,843,685 2,155,804 2,144.299 2,199.428 2,578.433 2.603.634 
Power 424,266 399,239 486,461 520,431 522,181 386,367 520,234 453,306 459,483 
Sludge Removal' 242,838 221 ,541 162,627 225,990 281,096 397,813 298.241 276.292 319.660 
Materials and Supplies 225,624 190,830 192,900 184,933 209,323 176,687 215,782 206,648 216,427 
Repairs and Replacements 159,819 186.806 161,825 150,764 128,645 155,447 445.040 253.789 262.795 
Equipment rental 2 0 0 3,659 165 2,242 37,215 1,363 351 835 
Utilities expense 3 22.509 19,757 16.062 11,773 13,023 26.737 22.207 14.180 61 .996 
Communications expense 4 34,293 45,613 33,490 38,610 44,062 37,064 32,160 39,043 44,988 
Contractual services - other 75,706 95.678 81,626 102,120 94,181 74.947 97.296 78.879 90.873 
Contractual services. prof 5 136,259 224,045 99,798 151 ,407 191,457 399,514 214,413 153,470 120,390 
Permits and fees 124,708 131 .361 142,310 145,866 148,687 145,515 158.528 185.051 201 .452 
Property tax expense 3,488 3,265 3,426 3,476 3,523 3,599 3,665 3,917 3,963 
Insurance expense 6 86.135 69,622 83.561 87,406 85,386 99.428 100.952 112.262 171 .881 
Other operating expense 65,638 58,032 57,963 59,474 56,328 50,469 48,142 45,018 37,216 
Depreciation and amortizatoin 806 274 799,443 840 229 875 328 896 429 842154 893,196 863,233 898 422 
Total 4,220,392 4,242,923 4,110,979 4,401 ,428 4,832,367 4,977,256 5,250,647 5,263,872 5,494,015 

OPERATING INCOME 628,751 698,877 1,052,266 756,193 334,072 274,978 156.539 325.474 213.050 

NONOPERATING REVENUES: 
Net gain on asset disposal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Interest income (loss) 16.167 11,305 12.430 22,889 29,101 73.866 164.531 130.952 -1 .670 
Lease Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 52,592 
Other Q Q Q Q Q Q 180 101 297 24.158 
Total non-operating revenue 16,167 11 ,305 12,430 22,889 29,101 73,866 164,711 232,249 75,080 

NONOPERATING EXPENSES: 
Net Loss on asset disposal 122,718 28,326 21 .553 2,678 91,973 1,709.527 0 9.178 360.999 
Interest expense 165,092 111 ,747 145,012 130,669 115,849 100,536 134,569 135,308 122,823 
Amortization debt costs 11 ,700 11,700 11 .700 11 ,700 11 ,700 11 ,700 7,665 5,029 5,029 
Other Q Q Q Q Q 19 777 181 529 172 597 98 876 
Total non-operating expense 299,510 151 ,773 178,265 145,047 219,522 1,841,540 323,763 322,112 587,727 

INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL 
CONTRIBUTIONS 345,408 558,409 886,431 634,035 143,651 -1,492.696 -2.513 235.611 -299.597 

Capital contributions 11.QjQQ 1.§illQ ~ ~ 231 210 ~ 188,100 188,100 ~ 
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 455,508 723,559 1,194,711 887,265 374,861 -1,243.136 185.587 423.711 -15.357 

NET POSITION 
Beginning of year 16 824 400 17 279 908 16 207 863 17 402 574 18 289 839 17150110 15,906,974 16,092,561 16 512 512 
End of year ~ ~ lJ.Lill.ill ~ lli.§§illQ lli.22§.lli $16,092,561 $16,516,272 lli.fillli 

1 Amounts in fiscal year 2009 and 2010 include one-time warranty payments netted against sludge removal expense of $100,820 in each year. 
2 Included in materials and supplies expense prior to fiscal year 2009. 
3 Included in power expense prior to fiscal year 2009. 
4 Included in materials and supplies expense prior to fiscal year 2009. 
5 Amount in fiscal year 2009 includes a one-time, noncash adjustment of $149,938. 
6 Includes workers' compensation insurance beginning in fiscal year 2009. In prior years, this expense was included in salaries and benefits expense. 

2022 

$5,845,163 
79,220 
22,070 
LZQl! 

5,954,162 

2.095.989 
388,721 
271 .361 
172,426 
156.609 

111 
22.427 
48,093 
86.212 

196,672 
234.270 

4,017 
188.844 
42,987 

883 955 
4,792,694 

1.161.468 

0 
-70.341 
52,741 

133 473 
115,873 

33.519 
109,214 

5,029 
103172 
250,934 

1.026.407 

~ 
1.390.067 

16 497155 
~ 

7 The above data was extracted from the Agency"s financial statements. Net position was restated in fiscal years 2007, 2011, 2013, 2015, 2018 and 2021 to reflect a 
reduction in assets, the Agency's PERS side fund liability, the implementation of GASB 65. the implementation of GASB 68, implementation of GASB 75, and the 
implementation of GASB 87, respectively. 

-54-



OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES - 10-FISCAL YEARS 

$6,500,000 

$3,500,000 

$3,000,000 

$2,500,000 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

$6,000,000 

$5,500,000 

$5,000,000 

$4,500,000 

$4,000,000 

--Operating Revenues --Operating Expenses 

OPERATING INCOME, INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS, AND 
CHANGE IN NET POSITION - 10 FISCAL YEARS 

$2,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$1,000,000 

$500,000 

so 

$500,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$2,000,000 
cannibal system assets written off 

--Operating Income -- Income Before Capital Contributions --Change in Net Position 

-55-



OPERATING EXPENSE DETAIL - 10 FISCAL YEARS 

$3,000,000 

$2,500,000 ____ 7' 
$2,000,000 _ _____ _ :? L 

$1,500,000 

$1,000,000 

$500,000 ------- ---------$0 
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 202 1 2022 

--Collection, Treatment and Disposal --Salari es and Benefits 

--Contractual Services - Permits and Fees 

--Administration --Dep reciation 

NET NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE), CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
(CONNECTION FEE REVENUE) - 10 FISCAL YEARS 

$500,000 

$0 ----- ----- --- - ---- --- ----- --- - ---- --- ----- --- - ---- --- ----- --- - ---- --- ----- --- - ---- --- ----- --- - ---- --- ----- --- - ---- --- ----

2015 

$500,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,500,000 

cannibal system assets written off 

$2,000,000 

--Cap Contr ib . /Con Fee Rev --Nonope rating income (expense) 

-56-



Revenue Capacity 

OPERA TING REVENUE BY CATEGORY - 10 FISCAL YEARS 

OPERATING REVENUE BY COMPONENT - 10 FISCAL YEARS 

$6,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$1,000,000 

I I I I I 
I I I I I I I I I 
I I I I I I I I I 
I I I I I I I I I 
I I I I I I I I I 

$0 
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

� Annual Charges � Stand by Fees � Re nt and Waste Dis posal Fees Other 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 
OPERATING REVENUES: 
Annual charges $4,688,312 $4,778,215 $4,979,690 $4,991 ,166 $5,007,070 $5,091 ,576 $5,251 ,542 $5,437,076 $5,602,113 5,845,163 
Standby fees 92,430 91 ,400 90,860 89,250 86,930 85,180 83,200 81 ,660 80,300 79,220 
Rent, waste disposal fees 68,351 70,178 68,120 72,101 71 ,951 73,562 71 ,679 70,610 23,859 22,070 
Other 50 2,007 24,575 5,104 488 1,916 765 0 793 7,709 
Total operating revenues li.W.lli WWW ~ WfilZ1 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

Annual charges are the Agency's largest component of Operating Revenues and represent the 
Agency's charges for the collection, treatment and disposal of wastewater flow. Annual charges 
are charged to the Member Agencies (the Big Bear City Community Services District, the City of 
Big Bear Lake, and the County of San Bernardino CSA 53B), and are based on the sewer user fee 
(rate) established by the Governing Board of Directors, the number of equivalent dwelling units and 
the volume of wastewater collected, treated and disposed of. 

ANNUAL CHARGES BY MEMBER AGENCY - 10 FISCAL YEARS 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

CSA 538 $233,120 $239,091 $247,473 $241 ,822 $242,135 $244,697 $250,523 $258,429 $268,256 $278,853 
Big Bear City CSD 2,127,109 2,179,871 2,306,127 2,335,900 2,363,616 2,398,457 2,488,269 2,579,204 2,652,478 2,763,777 
City of Big Bear Lake 2.328.083 2,359.253 2.426.090 2.413.444 2.401.319 2,448.422 2,512.750 2,599.443 2,681.379 2,802.534 
Total Annual Charges ~ ~ ~ ~ lillllLl!Zl! ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

-57-



ANNUAL CHARGES BY MEMBER AGENCY 
10 FISCAL YEARS 

6,000,000 

5,000,000 

/ 

4,000,000 

3,000,000 

2,000,000 

1,000,000 

0 
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

� County Service Area 538 � Big Bear City CSD � Cit y of Big Bea r Lake 

ANNUALCHARGESBYMEMBERAGENCY 
% OF TOTAL 

2013 2022 
County Service Area 53B 5% 5% 
Big Bear City CSD 45% 47% 
City of Big Bear Lake 50% 48% 

100% 100% 

-58-



EQUIVALENT DWELLING UNITS BY MEMBER AGENCY - 10 FISCAL YEARS 

30,000 

25,000 

20,000 

15,000 

10,000 

5,000 

0 

- City of Big Bear Lake 

- Big Bear City CSD 

- County Service Area 53B 

--Total EDUs 

24,668 25,288 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

11,539 11,547 11,568 11,636 11,654 11,506 11,559 11,573 11,666 11,698 

11,881 11,886 11,910 11,977 12,004 12,234 12,260 12,279 12,290 12,326 

1,248 1,251 1,257 1,258 1,259 1,260 1,262 1,262 1,264 1,264 

24,668 24,684 24,735 24,871 24,917 25,000 25,081 25,114 25,220 25,288 

INFLUENT FLOW BY MEMBER AGENCY SERVED {MILLIONS OF GALLONS) 
10 FISCAL YEARS 

900 

800 -- - - - - ------~ ---7~-------
700 

__/ V -
600 

500 

400 ./"... ~ 

___/ -----~~ -- -
300 - ~ 

200 

100 

0 
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

County Service Area 53B 28 .633 25 .978 25.563 25 .211 32.277 23 .686 34.111 27 .756 23 .942 22 .315 

--- Big Bear City CSD 285.853 274.178 267.355 271.320 324.605 281.152 344.309 275.529 316.385 304.217 

--- City of Big Bear Lake 349.321 305.514 308.589 337.312 432.546 296.724 429.294 377.903 359.227 341.177 

---Tota l Influ ent Flow 663 .807 605 .670 601.508 633 .842 789.428 601.562 807.714 681 .188 699.554 667.709 

- - - Average Dry Weather Flow 788.000 788.000 788.000 788.000 788.000 788.000 788.000 788.000 788.000 788.000 

-59-



/ 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

ANNUAL SEWER USER FEE 
RATE CHARGED PER EDU - 10 FISCAL YEARS 

$250.00 

$200.00 

$150.00 

$100.00 

$50.00 

$-

Debt Capacity 

DEBT RATIOS - 10 FISCAL YEARS 

llill ~ ~ ~ lQ1l 2018 ~ 2020 2021 ~ 

Principal Outstanding (1) $4,969,876 $4,554 ,398 $4,125,097 $3,681,512 $3,223,168 $2,749 ,574 $4,040,433 $3,668,205 $3,283,230 $2,885,070 
EDUs 24,668 24,684 24,735 24,871 24,917 25,000 25,081 25,114 25,220 25,288 

Debt per EDU $201 $185 $167 $148 $129 $ ro $161 $146 $130 $114 
Debt per Residential EDU $242 $221 $200 $178 $155 $132 $193 $175 $156 $137 
Debt as %of Household Income 0.7% 0.6% 0.5% 0.5% 0.4% 0.4% 0.5% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 
Rate of Debt to Gross Revenue 100 0.89 0.75 0.68 0.59 0.49 0.70 0.62 0.54 0.46 

1 Amounts exclude debt issuance or discount costs being amortized over the life of 1he debt issue, and amounts related to Net Pension and OPES Liabilities. 
2 Household income is derived from an average of the household incomes estimated for the City of Big Bear Lake and the Big Bear City Community Services District. For 

the periods through 2017 the estimate was determined with data provided in the 2010 U.S. Census Bureau. For periods 2018 and after, data provided in the 2018 
American Community Survey was used. 

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE - 10 FISCAL YEARS 

OUTSTANDING DEBT 1 

Fiscal Refunding Water Total Gross Net Debt Debt Service 

Year Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Loan Ou1standing Debt Revenues Revenues 2 Service 3 Coverage 

2013 0 4,969,876 4,969,876 4,975,410 1,561,293 579,284 2.70 

2014 0 4,554,398 4,554,398 5,118,255 1,674,775 579,284 2.89 

2015 0 4,125,097 4,125,097 5,483,955 2,213,205 579,284 3.82 

2016 0 3,681,512 3,681,512 5,433,739 1,907,640 579,284 3.29 

2017 0 3,223,168 3,223,168 5,426,749 1,490,810 579,284 2.57 

2018 0 2,368,710 2,368,710 5,575,660 1,440,559 579,284 2.49 

2019 0 0 4,040,433 4,040,433 5,759,997 1,402,366 593,013 2.36 

2020 0 0 3,668,205 3,668,205 5,908,852 1,508,210 511,944 2.95 

2021 0 0 3,283,230 3,283,230 6,042,227 1,446,634 511,944 2.83 

2022 0 0 2,885,070 2,885,070 6,300,304 2,391 ,563 511 ,944 4.67 

1 Outstanding debt balances reflect principal balances and exclude discounts, premiums and deferred amounts. All debt outstanding is secured by all the revenues of 
the Agency. 

2 Net Revenues are defined as operating revenue plus interest income plus proceeds from the sale of assets plus other income plus connection fee revenue less 
operating and maintenance expense. Calculation excludes noncash depreciation and amortization expense. Net Revenues include one-time, non-operating income 
of $788,361 in fiscal year 2011 . Net Revenue include GASS 68 and 75 adjustments. These adjustments were material in FY 2022. Excluding these adjustments, 
debt service coverage in FY 2022 was 3.78%. 

3 Debt service is calculated on an accrual basis for bo1h principal and interest and may not agree with the basic financial statements. 

-60-



Demographic and Economic Information 

POPULATION ESTIMATES 

UNEMPLOYMENT ESTIMATES 

The following is general information related to the economic and demographic condition of the Agency's 
service area. The Agency serves a rural , tourist-based area comprised of three separate service areas: the 
Big Bear City Community Services District (CSD), the City of Big Bear Lake, and the County of San 
Bernardino County Service Area 538 (CSA 538). It should be noted that the Agency serves a large 
population of second homeowners due to the resort nature of the area. The Agency estimates that 
approximately 38% of the residential sewer connections represent full-time Big Bear residents. 

The statistics presented on the following pages have been obtained from information estimated by the U.S. 
Census Bureau in the 2018 American Community Survey. It is important to note that the information 
presented covers the zip code areas of 92315, which is represented in the following demographic 
information as the City of Big Bear Lake and 92314, which is represented in the following 
demographic information as Big Bear City. 

~H\Mi=M-i¥ii;H-=M=i¥ihff~ 
2018 3.4% 5.9% 

-61-



HOUSEHOLD INCOME 
(combined zip codes of 92314 and 92315) 

$150,000 or more 9% 

$100,000 to $149,999 13% 

$75,000 to $99,999 12% 

$50,000 to $74,999 18% 

$35,000 to $49,999 14% 

$25,000 to $34,999 10% 

$20,000 to $24,999 6% 

$15,000 to $19,999 4% 

$10,000 to $14,999 7% 

$5,000 to $9,999 2% 

Less than $5,000 5% 

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18% 20% 

-62-



% OF EMPLOYED POPULATION BY INDUSTRY 
(combined zip codes of 92314 and 92315) 

Public administration - 4% 

Other services, except public administration 5% 

Arts, entertainment, recreation; ... 23% 

Educational services; health care and social. .. 18% 

Professional, scientific, mgt; admin and waste ... 7% 

Finance, insurance, real estate, rental and ... 8% 

Information I 0% 

Transportation and warehousing, and utilities 7% 

Retail trade 12% 

Wholesale trade • 1% 

Manufacturing 4% 

Construction 9% 

Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting, and ... • 1% 

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 

% OF EMPLOYED POPULATION BY OCCUPATION 
(combined zip codes of 92314 and 92315) 

r 
Production, transportation, and material 

- 10% moving occupations 

I I 
Natural resources, construction, and 

maintenance occupations 
12% 

Sales and office occupations 22% 

Service occupations 25% 

Management, business, science, and arts 
31% 

occupations 

0% 5% 

-63-



BIG BEAR AREA1 COMPARISON TO STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME 

$80,000 

$70,000 

$60,000 

$50,000 

$40,000 

$30,000 

$20,000 

$10,000 

$-
Big Bear Area Cali forn ia 

PERSONS PER HOUSEHOLD 

3.50 

3.00 

2.50 

2.00 

1.50 

1.00 

0.50 

0.00 
Big Bear Area Cali forn ia 

r PERSONS BELOW POVERTY LEVEL 

20.0% 
18.0% 
16.0% 
14.0% 
12.0% 
10.0% 
8.0% 
6.0% 
4.0% 
2.0% 
0.0% 

Big Bear Area California 

1 Includes the zip code areas of 92314 and 92315. 

-64-



Operating Information 

System Demand (annual influent flow) 

The Agency's wastewater flows are primarily impacted by 1) wet weather which creates infiltration and inflow 
into the system, and 2) peak tourist periods. Otherwise, the Agency's wastewater flows are fairly predictable 
due to the mature and stable commercial and residential housing markets in the area. The long-term 
average annual growth in equivalent dwelling units is below 1.0%. It is important to note that eight periods in 
the last ten years have been below the Agency's long-term average dry weather flow of 788 million gallons 
due to drought conditions. 

INFLUENT FLOW (GALLONS)- 10 FISCAL YEARS 

850,000,000 

550,000,000 

500,000,000 

450,000,000 

400,000,000 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

800,000,000 

750,000,000 

700,000,000 

650,000,000 

600,000,000 

--Total Influent Flow - - - Average Dry Weather Flow 

EQUIVALENT DWELLING UNITS 
10 FISCAL YEARS 

25,288 
25,300 

25,200 

25,100 

25,000 -

24,900 

24,800 

24,700 

24,600 

24,500 

24,400 

24,300 
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

-65-



AGENCY STAFFING BY DEPARTMENT1 

Year Admistration ~ Water Reuse Laboratory Total 

2002 4.0 7.0 1.0 2.0 14.0 

2003 4.0 6.0 1.0 2.0 13.0 

2004 4.0 7.5 1.0 2.0 14.5 

2005 4.0 8.0 1.0 2.0 15.0 

2006 3.5 7.5 1.0 2.0 14.0 

2007 3.5 9.5 0.0 2.0 15.0 

2008 3.7 9.2 0.0 2.1 15.0 

2009 4.0 8.5 0.0 2.0 14.5 

2010 4.0 9.0 0.0 2.0 15.0 

2011 3.5 9.0 0.0 2.0 14.5 

2012 3.5 8.5 0.0 2.0 14.0 

2013 3.5 9.0 0.0 2.0 14.5 

2014 3.5 9.0 0.0 2.0 14.5 

2015 3.5 9.5 0.0 2.0 15.0 

2016 3.5 10.5 0.0 1.0 15.0 

2017 3.5 10.5 0.0 1.0 15.0 

2018 3.5 10.5 0.0 1.0 15.0 

2019 4 .5 9.5 0.0 1.0 15.0 

2020 4.5 9.5 0.0 1.0 15.0 

2021 4.0 10.5 0.0 1.0 15.5 

2022 4.0 10.5 0.0 1.0 15.5 

1Full-time regular employees are assigned a 1.0. Part-time (regular, not full-time) and Non-regular (seasonal, temporary) are assigned a 0.5, 
although hours worked and compensation are not equivalent, i.e. part-time employees may receive full benefits and non-regular employees may 
not receive benefits. Staffing levels are as of June 30 of the respective fiscal year. 

18.0 

15.5 15.5 
16.0 14.5 15.0 15.0 15.0 14 5 15.0 

STAFFI NG LEVELS 

14 5 14.5 14.5 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 
14.0 14.o _;_ ~ ·:_1~4i~-~o ;.::.::__:~-----------: ~ ~ 

14.0 13.0 -
12.0 

10.0 

8.0 

6 .0 

4.0 

2.0 

0.0 f-

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 20212022 

- Administration - Ope rations - Water Reuse Laboratory --Total 

-66-



Treatment Plant 

lnerceptor System 

Power Generation Equipment 

Land 

Administration Building 

Other Equipment 

Effluent Disposal Assets 

other Tangible Plant 

Construction in Progress 

Transportation Equipment 

Flow Measuring Devices 

Studies and Maps $14,702 

$0 $2,000,000 $4,000,000 $6,000,000 $8,000,000 

$1,375,671 

$1,203,442 

$1,037,626 

$1,026,246 

$994,924 

$534,420 

$480,321 

$299,248 

$244,227 

$127,662 

$8,172,566 

Nature of Capital Assets and Capacity Utilization 

The concentration of the Agency's assets directly reflects its operations with the largest investments in the 
wastewater treatment plant (53%) and the interceptor system (9%). 

CAPITAL ASSETS (NET BOOK VALUE) 

KEY ASSETS 

Clarifiers 3 Miles of Pi 15.07 
Covered D in Bed 1 Manholes 93 
Oxidation Ditches 3 Air Release Vents 12 
Stora e Ponds 5 Lift Stations 4 

The Agency's facilities and processes have excess capacity due to the demographics of the area served. 
While there are approximately 21,000 residential sewer connections, the Agency estimates that only 38% or 
7,980 connections reside in the Big Bear area full-time. The Agency's facilities were built to meet some of 
the demand associated with an increase in full-time occupancy. Historical data is not available. 

-67-



CAPACITY UTILIZATION BY STRUCTURE 

Capacity Utilzation Utilization 

MG� MG� Rate 

Capacity Utilization by Structure 

Effluent Pumping 5.6 2.4 43% 
Interceptor System 2.0 0.5 25% 
Lake Pump Station 8.0 4.6 58% 
Load Equalization Basin 2.4 0.8 33% 
Main Line 7.2 3.2 44% 
North Shore Pump Station 0.9 0.3 33% 
Oxidation Ditches 4.9 2.4 49% 
RAS Pumping 3.8 2.4 63% 
Sludge Building 6.4 2.4 38% 

-68-



                                                                                                                      
                                                                                    

   
                                                                                                                                                            
    
   
                                              

 
  

  

     

        

     

   

  

 

 

 
 

 

 
   

  
    

  

 

 
 

     
  

    
 

   
 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Big Bear Area Regional 
Wastewater Agency 
Rick Herrick – Chair 
John Green – Vice-Chair 
Jim Miller – Director 
Bynette Mote – Director 
Larry Walsh – Director   

AGENDA ITEM: 6.A. 

MEETING DATE: October 26, 2022 

TO: Governing Board of the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

FROM: David Lawrence, P.E., General Manager 

REVIEWED BY: Jennifer McCullar, Finance Manager; and John Shimmin, Plant Manager 

SUBJECT: General Manager’s Report 

DISCUSSION: 

Administration 

Audit 

The Agency’s audit was completed on October 13, 2022. The audit was completed in a timely 
manner with a successful outcome. 

GFOA Award 

The Agency received the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the Agency’s 10th consecutive year of applying for and receiving 
such recognition. The award is granted by the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) 
of the United States and Canada and recognizes governments that meet the requirements associated 
with publishing an annual report that is easily readable, efficiently organized and satisfies generally 
accepted accounting principles and legal requirements. 

AB 361 

Governor Gavin Newsom announced that he was lifting the state of emergency declaration on Feb. 
28, 2023, phasing out the final 27 of nearly 600 directives he established by the proclamation and 
other executive orders signed during the pandemic. Key for local agencies, among other 
considerations, will be the fact that after that February 28th date, local agencies will not be able to 
rely on the provisions of the COVID-19 state of emergency for their AB 361 resolutions, effectively 
requiring that agencies return to in-person meetings or use the teleconferencing provisions that 
existed prior to the COVID-19 pandemic; alternatively, they may use the provisions of AB 2449 to 
meet remotely under specified conditions. 



    
     

 

 

    

 

  

    

 

     

  

    
 

 

 

 

 

MONTH 
July 
August 
September 
October 
November 
December 
January 
February 
March 
April 
May 
June 
TOTAL 

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 CITY-BBL CSD CSA-53B 
3 

12 
4 
9 
5 
4 
0 
1 
2 
3 
4 

16 

4 
6 
6 
8 

11 
2 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

3 
10 
3 
3 
5 
3 
1 
0 
3 
3 
5 
6 

7 
2 
7 
5 
2 
1 
1 
1 
1 
7 
5 
6 

3 
12 
3 

10 
2 
2 
2 
0 
3 

12 
6 

13 

11 
5 
7 
9 
5 
3 
2 
6 
9 

12 
7 

11 

2 
13 
8 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

1
5
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1
8
6
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

63 37 45 45 68 87 23 8 15 0  

 

 

Flow Percentages  
Member Agency   July  August  September 
City of Big Bear Lake   49.61%  47.09%  44.59% 

 Big Bear City  46.22%  48.91%  51.60% 
 County of San Bernardino  4.17%  4.00%  3.81% 

Operations 

Headworks Grit System Rehabilitation Project 

The Agency has executed a change order to extend the contract deadline to June 2023 due to 
procurement delays. 

Oxidation Ditch 2 Rotor 4 Shaft Replacement 

Bids were received on October 20, 2022 and are being evaluated. 

Solar Production 

The September 2022 monthly performance report is attached. 

2022 Treatment Plant Data 

There were no reportable violations during September 2022 for the plant. The influent flow (MG) 
chart is attached to this report. 

Connections  

FYE 6/30/2023 

Page 2 of 4 Agenda Item 6.A. General Manager’s Report 



    
     

 

  

 

      
    

   
   

 

  
    

  

 

  
   

    
    

    
  

 

 
 

   

    
 

 

   
    

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Replenish Big Bear (RBB) 

Permitting 

The Project Team submitted the formal response to the Regional Board regarding the National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit on October 13, 2022. 

The Project Team provided comments to the Division of Drinking Water (DDW) for the well 
investigation work plan; Water Systems Consulting, Inc. (WSC) is coordinating the next steps. 

Environmental Review 

The target completion date for the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) processes is the summer of 2023. The Project Team is reviewing 
the Project description and compiling a list of recipients for the Notice of Preparation. 

Agreements and Contracts 

The Agency continues to work with legal counsel and project beneficiaries to develop preliminary 
terms associated with the distribution of project water and future monetary contributions to the 
project. Separate Funding Letters of Intent with the City of Big Bear Lake, Big Bear Municipal 
Water District (BBMWD), and Big Bear Mountain Resort are being developed. 

The Benefits Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is pending signatures from the County of 
San Bernardino, BBMWD, Visit Big Bear, and the City of Big Bear Lake. The County Board of 
Supervisors will not consider this item until all other parties have signed. 

The Agency has amended and/or is in the process of amending its contracts with both WSC and 
Tom Dodson & Associates (TDA) to continue the engineering and environmental work for RBB. 
An MOU to cost-share additional environmental work to address the potential impacts to the 
Unarmored Threespined Stickleback fish is being developed and will provide for the cost sharing 
of such services among the Agency, the Big Bear City Community Services District, and the City 
of Big Bear Lake Department of Water and Power. 

Funding 

The Agency is working with Fieldman Rolapp & Associates, Inc. to obtain terms and conditions 
for a short-term loan to cover pre-construction activities associated with RBB. 

The Agency was notified on October 18, 2022 that the Project has been selected to submit an 
application for the Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) loan. 

Page 3 of 4 Agenda Item 6.A. General Manager’s Report 



    
     

 

 

   

   

   

     

    
 

     

     

   

 

  
    

    

     

  
   

    
    

 

      
   

     
   

  

Grant Status 

Grant Amount Status 

DCI Technical Assistance $500,000 Awarded and Fully Funded 

IRWM Prop 1, Round 1 $4,563,338 Awarded, In Process 

2021 Title XVI $1,600,000 Awarded, In Process 

2022 EPA STAG $960,000 CEQA and NEPA must be 
completed prior to an Award 

2022 Title XVI $8,267,112 Recommended for Funding 

2023 Community Funding Request $1,000,000 Recommended for Funding 

Total $16,890,450 

The Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) and the Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) amended their Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Prop 1 Round 1 grant 
agreement, in which the Agency is a sub-grantee. The agreement provides an updated schedule. 

The first semi-annual report for the 2021 Title XVI grant is due on October 31, 2022. 

CEQA guidelines for the 2022 Environmental Protection Agency State and Tribal Assistance (EPA 
STAG) grant are expected in Fall 2022. CEQA/NEPA processes must be completed prior to an 
award, even though the grant was included in the appropriations bill. The Project Team submitted 
the EPA questionnaire on October 12, 2022 and will be scheduling a meeting to confirm the grant 
requirements. 

The formal award from the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) for the 2022 Title XVI 
grant in the amount of $8,267,112 is pending. 

Congressman Obernolte recommended the Project’s $1 million Community Funding Request for 
inclusion into the Federal budget, and we expect to receive notification after the federal budget 
approval process. 

Page 4 of 4 Agenda Item 6.A. General Manager’s Report 



      
 

  

     

   

        

  

  

 

  

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

   

� Actual Er.ergy . kWh � ~O<ecast Er.ergy . kWh - Actual lrradlance - kWhlm2 - Forecast lrradl~nce • l<W'hlrn2 

MONTHLY REPORT Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater 
September 2022 

Agency 

Capacity (kW DC) 1660.0 

Resource Solar 

Project Company Distributed Solar Development, LLC. Mohawk 

Utility Bear Valley Electric Service 

Address 121 Palomina Dr - 92314 Big Bear - California/United 
States 

Last Months Performance 

Energy (kWh) Energy (kWh) 

Time 

01 Sep 2022 

02 Sep 2022 

03 Sep 2022 

04 Sep 2022 

05 Sep 2022 

06 Sep 2022 

07 Sep 2022 

Energy (kWh) 

Actual 

8,423.75 

9,027.50 

10,083.50 

8,706.25 

10,097.00 

9,980.50 

9,826.00 

Forcasted 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

08 Sep 2022 

09 Sep 2022 

10 Sep 2022 

11 Sep 2022 

12 Sep 2022 

13 Sep 2022 

14 Sep 2022 

15 Sep 2022 

16 Sep 2022 

17 Sep 2022 

18 Sep 2022 

19 Sep 2022 

20 Sep 2022 

21 Sep 2022 

22 Sep 2022 

23 Sep 2022 

24 Sep 2022 

25 Sep 2022 

26 Sep 2022 

27 Sep 2022 

28 Sep 2022 

29 Sep 2022 

30 Sep 2022 

Totals 

5,554.00 

2,170.50 

2,257.50 

7,974.75 

3,516.25 

4,883.25 

8,272.50 

10,422.00 

10,407.25 

10,498.00 

10,491.75 

10,392.75 

10,356.75 

10,466.25 

10,472.50 

7,977.75 

7,534.50 

7,267.00 

10,102.50 

9,237.75 

5,056.00 

10,078.00 

10,154.50 

230,749.75 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

8,878.93 

266,368.00 

Last 3 Months Performance 

          Powered by BluePoint Support #: +1-518-949-0573 Support Email: asset.management@dsdrenewables.com Page 1 of 2 

mailto:asset.management@dsdrenewables.com
http:266,368.00
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:230,749.75
http:10,154.50
http:10,078.00
http:5,056.00
http:9,237.75
http:10,102.50
http:7,267.00
http:7,534.50
http:7,977.75
http:10,472.50
http:10,466.25
http:10,356.75
http:10,392.75
http:10,491.75
http:10,498.00
http:10,407.25
http:10,422.00
http:8,272.50
http:4,883.25
http:3,516.25
http:7,974.75
http:2,257.50
http:2,170.50
http:5,554.00
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:8,878.93
http:9,826.00
http:9,980.50
http:10,097.00
http:8,706.25
http:10,083.50
http:9,027.50
http:8,423.75


 

 

  

 

    
  

    

    

       

    

    

        
        

         
         

           
        

          
     

       
        

          
         

 
      

          
        

   

� AcruaJ Energy - kWh � Forecast Ene rgy - kWh - Acrual lrradlalon - kWhlm2 - Forecastl rrad;a1on - 1<Whlm2 - Acrua/ - 'Mo - Forecasl - '111 - Pertormar.::eRatio(A) - Perlormar><:eRatio(F) 

- \ 

\ 

Energy (kWh) Availability and PR 

Closed Events Last 3 Months 
Event Date Event Name Status 

11 Jun 2022 23:28 Plant Outage Resolved 

15 Jun 2022 14:14 INV 11,18,22 Resolved 

18 Jul 2022 08:33 Site Outage, Power Logger Fault Closed 

21 Jul 2022 13:32 Plant Outage Resolved 

01 Aug 2022 10:59 Plant Outage Closed 

Energy(kwh): Radiant light and heat from the Sun 
Irradiation(kwh): The power per unit area produced by the 
Sun in the form of electromagnetic radiation. The solar 
irradiance integrated over time is called solar irradiation, solar 
exposure or insolation. The SI unit of irradiance is watt per 
square meter (W/m2). The solar energy business uses watt-
hour per square meter (Wh/m2) divided by the recording time. 
1 kW/m2 = 24 kWh/(m2 day). 
Production (kwh): Energy generated by your system 
Weather Adjustment (Δ): PV systems depends both on the 
quality of the system and the weather. This adjustment is made 
to give more consistent results throughout the year as the 
weather changes. 
Availability: the Max theoretical generation capacity 
PR (Performance Ratio): the ratio measured output to the 
expected output for a given reporting period based on the 
system name-plate rating 

          Powered by BluePoint Support #: +1-518-949-0573 Support Email: asset.management@dsdrenewables.com Page 2 of 2 

mailto:asset.management@dsdrenewables.com


 Influent Flow (MG) 

 

r-- r-- r-- r-- r--

- - - - -

120 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

July September November January March May 
FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Avg. Dry Weather Flow 



 
 

  

 
       

  

     
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

  
 

  
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
     
    

  
  

 

 
 
 
 
 

BIG BEAR AREA REGIONAL WASTEWATER AGENCY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

September 28, 2022 
1.  CALL TO ORDER  

A Regular Meeting of the Governing Board of the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater 
Agency was called to order by Vice-Chair Green at 5:00 p.m. on September 28, 2022 at 
121 Palomino Drive, Big Bear City, California and via Zoom. 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT  
Rick Herrick, Chair (via Zoom, departed meeting at 6:14 p.m.) 
John Green, Vice-Chair 
Jim Miller, Director 
Bynette Mote, Director 
Larry Walsh, Director 

BOARD MEMBERS  ABSENT  
None 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT  
David Lawrence, General Manager 
Jennifer McCullar, Finance Manager 
John Shimmin, Plant Manager 
Bridgette Burton, Management Analyst/Board Secretary 

OTHERS  
Ed (via Zoom) 
Fran (David Lebowitz) (via Zoom) 
Ward Simmons, Best Best & Krieger, LLP (via Zoom) 
Frank Forbes, County of San Bernardino Representative (via Zoom) 
Kendi Segovia, Big Bear Lake 
Sharon Pedersen (via Zoom) 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
Director Miller 

3.  APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  
Upon motion by Director Walsh, seconded by Director Mote and carried, the Governing 
Board approved the agenda as presented. 

Ayes: Green, Miller, Mote, Walsh, Herrick 
Noes: None 
Absent: None 
Abstain: None 

4.  PUBLIC FORUM  
No comments 



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

 

  
    

 
 

 
 

 
      

 
    

 
    

 
 

   
 

    
 

 
 

   
 

      
   

 
    
    

  
  

 
 

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

September 28, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 

5.  PRESENTATIONS AND INTRODUCTIONS  

5.A. Replenish Big Bear Project Update to Permitting, Timeline, Pilot Facility, Project 
Costs, and Funding and Financing 

The General Manager presented an update on the Replenish Big Bear Project which 
included additional treatment requirements, a timeline extension due to permitting 
delays, a recommendation to move forward with the pilot facility, the effects of the 
additional treatment and inflation on project costs, along with an update on grants 
and loans, the cost share Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) status, and 
negotiations with Project beneficiaries. Discussion ensued between the Governing 
Board and staff. 

6.  INFORMATION/COMMITTEE REPORTS   

6.A. General Manager’s Report 

Information detailed in the General Manager’s Report was discussed during Item 
5.A. 

7.  CONSENT CALENDAR  

7.A.   Approval of the Meeting Minutes from the August 24, 2022 Regular Meeting 

7.B.   Monthly Disbursements Report for August 

7.C.   Investment Report Identifying Agency Investments and Reporting Interest Income 
for August 

7.D.   Approval of AB 361 Open Meetings: State and Local Agencies: Teleconferences 

7.E. Resolution No. R. 11-2022, A Resolution of the Governing Board of the Big Bear 
Area Regional Wastewater Agency Adopting the Annual Statement of Investment 
Policy 

7.F Approval of Carryover Appropriations 

Upon motion by Director Miller, seconded by Director Walsh and carried, the Governing 
Board approved the Consent Calendar as presented. 

Ayes: Green, Miller, Mote, Walsh, Herrick 
Noes: None 
Absent: None 
Abstain: None 



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
      

 
  

 
 

 
 

   
   

 
 

    
    

  
 

     
   

 
 
      

  
 

   
   

 
 

   
 

  
 

 
    
   

  
  

 
 

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

September 28, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 

8.  ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT  CALENDAR  
None 

9.  OLD BUSINESS  
None 

10.  NEW BUSINESS  

10.A. Wastewater-Based Surveillance for Viruses and Other Infectious Diseases 

The Management Analyst/Board Secretary described the advantages and 
disadvantages of wastewater surveillance. The Governing Board requested 
clarification on the recommended requirements, how genetic data could be 
misused, and if any grant funds were available. Other concerns of the Governing 
Board included the effects of the transient population on samples, upcoming 
legislation, cost, impact to staff, communication of results, inoculations, operator 
safety, testing responsibility and access. Discussion ensued between Governing 
Board and staff. 

The Governing Board requested staff to draft a policy that includes an opt-in or out 
option for Member Agencies and bring this item back to the Board for 
consideration. 

10.B. Amendment No. 4 to the Professional Services Agreements between the Big Bear 
Area Regional Wastewater Agency and Water Systems Consulting, Inc. for the 
Replenish Big Bear Project 

The General Manager explained the need for Amendment No. 4 and explained that 
this Amendment does not include the actual pilot facility. The additional work will 
be paid by BBARWA after the existing $2.4 million cost share MOU with Project 
Partners is expended. The Governing Board requested clarification on specific line 
items, expressed concern regarding language in the proposal, and requested details 
on consultants and sub-consultants. Discussion ensued between the Governing 
Board and staff. 

Upon motion by Director Mote, seconded by Director Miller and carried, the 
Governing Board approved Amendment No. 4 to the Professional Services 
Agreements between the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency and Water 
Systems Consulting, Inc. for the Replenish Big Bear Project. 

Ayes: Green, Miller, Mote, Walsh 
Noes: None 
Absent: Herrick 
Abstain: None 



 
  

 
  

 
 

  
   

 
  

 
  

  
      

 
 

12.  ADJOURNMENT  
    

     
 
                                                         

         
           

    
 
 
 

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

September 28, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 

11.  COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

11.A.  General Manager Comments 
None 

11.B. Governing Board Member Comments 

The Governing Board expressed concern over Replenish Big Bear agreements, 
thanked staff for their work and announced the new City Manager started, clarified 
the reasons wastewater testing was important, and emphasized worker safety being 
a priority. 

With no further business to come before the Governing Board, Vice-Chair Green adjourned 
the meeting at 6:34 p.m. 

ATTEST: ____________________________________________ 
Bridgette Burton, Secretary to the Governing Board 
Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 



                                                                                                                      
                                                                                    

   
                                                                                                                                                            
    
   
                                              

 

 

 

   

     

   

    

      

  

       
 

  

  

  

 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Big Bear Area Regional 
Wastewater Agency 
Rick Herrick – Chair 
John Green – Vice-Chair 
Jim Miller – Director 
Bynette Mote – Director 
Larry Walsh – Director   

AGENDA ITEM: 7.B. 

MEETING DATE: October 26, 2022 

TO: Governing Board of the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

FROM: David Lawrence, P.E., General Manager 

PREPARED BY: Jennifer McCullar, Finance Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Disbursements Report for September 

BACKGROUND: 

Attached is the Agency’s check register for September which reflects accounts paid during the 
period. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

There is no financial impact. The funds have previously been appropriated. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Informational 



10/17/22 at 14:22:27.38 Page: 1 

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agncy
Check Register

For the Period From Sep 1, 2022 to Sep 30, 2022
Filter Criteria includes: 1) Accounts Payable only. Report order is by Date. 

Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount 

CASH 23570 9/2/22 PAYA 1000-20 19.99 

CASH 23571 9/2/22 PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL GROUP 1000-20 3,436.94 

CASH 23572 9/2/22 CALPERS HEALTH 1000-20 29,107.90 

CASH 23573 9/2/22 VISION SERVICE PLAN 1000-20 306.46 

CASH 23575 9/2/22 EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 1000-20 2,568.83 

CASH 23574 9/2/22 THE LINCOLN NAT'L LIFE INS CO 1000-20 4,245.99 

CASH 23576 9/2/22 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 1000-20 7,494.98 

CASH 23577 9/6/22 AMERICAN FIDELITY ASSURANCE CO 1000-20 525.41 

CASH 23578 9/6/22 CALPERS RETIREMENT 1000-20 3,361.42 

CASH 23579 9/6/22 CA PERS 457 PROGRAM 1000-20 4,585.91 

CASH 23580 9/6/22 CALPERS RETIREMENT 1000-20 8,224.55 

22454 9/9/22 ACCENT COMPUTER SOLUTIONS, INC. 1000-20 4,482.30 

22455 9/9/22 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1000-20 482.86 

22456 9/9/22 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES 1000-20 1,894.38 

22457 9/9/22 BIG BEAR CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DIST. 1000-20 449.67 

22458 9/9/22 BUTCHER'S BLOCK & BUILDING 1000-20 1,279.34 

22459 9/9/22 BEAR VALLEY ELECTRIC 1000-20 10,041.75 

22460 9/9/22 CAR QUEST OF BIG BEAR 1000-20 413.47 

22461 9/9/22 CWEA TCP/MEMBERSHIP 1000-20 435.00 

22462 9/9/22 CWEA-DAMS 1000-20 210.00 

22463 9/9/22 DIY HOME CENTER-BIG BEAR 1000-20 81.62 

22464 9/9/22 TOM DODSON & ASSOCIATES 1000-20 8,497.55 

22465 9/9/22 DISTRIBUTED SOLAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC 1000-20 16,784.54 

22466 9/9/22 DIRECT TV 1000-20 44.99 

22467 9/9/22 DEPARTMENT OF WATER & POWER 1000-20 48.75 

22468 9/9/22 ENVIRONMENTAL EXPRESS, INC 1000-20 209.00 

22469 9/9/22 EVANTEC CORPORATION 1000-20 243.79 

22470 9/9/22 FLYERS ENERGY 1000-20 1,195.63 

22471 9/9/22 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 1000-20 953.81 

22472 9/9/22 GRAINGER 1000-20 561.28 

22473 9/9/22 HUGHESNET 1000-20 102.33 

22474 9/9/22 INDUSTRIAL HEARING & PULMONARY 1000-20 417.00 

22475 9/9/22 KAHN, SOARES & CONWAY, LLP 1000-20 200.00 

http:1,195.63
http:16,784.54
http:8,497.55
http:10,041.75
http:1,279.34
http:1,894.38
http:4,482.30
http:8,224.55
http:4,585.91
http:3,361.42
http:7,494.98
http:4,245.99
http:2,568.83
http:29,107.90
http:3,436.94
http:14:22:27.38


10/17/22 at 14:22:27.44 Page: 2 

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agncy
Check Register

For the Period From Sep 1, 2022 to Sep 30, 2022
Filter Criteria includes: 1) Accounts Payable only. Report order is by Date. 

Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount 

22476 9/9/22 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY 1000-20 571.41 

22477 9/9/22 NAPA AUTO PARTS 1000-20 21.27 

22478 9/9/22 NATIVESCAPES INC 1000-20 1,060.00 

22479 9/9/22 CONSTANCE M. ALVARADO 1000-20 55.00 

22480 9/9/22 PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SERVICES 1000-20 145.89 

22481 9/9/22 QUILL 1000-20 427.83 

22482 9/9/22 R.I.C. CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. 1000-20 61,798.40 

22483 9/9/22 SPECTRUM BUSINESS 1000-20 1,023.93 

22484 9/9/22 STREAMLINE 1000-20 300.00 

22485 9/9/22 TWIN BEAR EQUIPMENT RENTAL, INC 1000-20 343.85 

22486 9/9/22 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT 1000-20 197.09 

22487 9/9/22 VIKING MAINTENANCE SERVICES, LLC 1000-20 1,350.00 

22488 9/9/22 WATER ENVIRONMENT FEDERATION 1000-20 342.00 

22489 9/9/22 WINZER CORP 1000-20 986.27 

22490 9/9/22 WATER SYSTEMS CONSULTING, INC. 1000-20 22,703.50 

22491 9/9/22 BRIDGETTE BURTON 1000-20 50.00 

22492 9/9/22 RICHARD T. HERRICK 1000-20 150.00 

22493 9/9/22 SONJA KAWA 1000-20 50.00 

22494 9/9/22 DAVID LAWRENCE 1000-20 50.00 

22495 9/9/22 JENNIFER MCCULLAR 1000-20 50.00 

22496 9/9/22 JAMES J. MILLER 1000-20 150.00 

22497 9/9/22 JOHN SHIMMIN 1000-20 50.00 

CASH 23581 9/13/22 BYNETTE L. MOTE 1000-20 150.00 

CASH 23582 9/13/22 JOHN GREEN 1000-20 150.00 

CASH 23583 9/13/22 LAWRENCE C. WALSH 1000-20 150.00 

CASH 23584 9/15/22 THE LINCOLN NAT'L LIFE INS CO 1000-20 4,245.99 

CASH 23585 9/16/22 EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 1000-20 2,614.02 

CASH 23586 9/16/22 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 1000-20 7,536.79 

CASH 23587 9/19/22 AMERICAN FIDELITY ASSURANCE CO 1000-20 525.41 

CASH 23588 9/19/22 CALPERS RETIREMENT 1000-20 3,361.42 

CASH 23589 9/19/22 CA PERS 457 PROGRAM 1000-20 4,585.91 

CASH 23590 9/19/22 CALPERS RETIREMENT 1000-20 8,224.55 

22498 9/23/22 BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 1000-20 2,340.80 

http:2,340.80
http:8,224.55
http:4,585.91
http:3,361.42
http:7,536.79
http:2,614.02
http:4,245.99
http:22,703.50
http:1,350.00
http:1,023.93
http:61,798.40
http:1,060.00
http:14:22:27.44


10/17/22 at 14:22:27.47 Page: 3 

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agncy
Check Register

For the Period From Sep 1, 2022 to Sep 30, 2022
Filter Criteria includes: 1) Accounts Payable only. Report order is by Date. 

Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount 

22499 9/23/22 BUSINESS CARD 1000-20 1,993.03 

22500 9/23/22 CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA, INC. 1000-20 1,531.13 

22501 9/23/22 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO 1000-20 695.00 

22502 9/23/22 COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO SOLID WASTE 1000-20 425.58 

22503 9/23/22 EVANTEC CORPORATION 1000-20 82.26 

22504 9/23/22 FAMCON PIPE & SUPPLY, INC. 1000-20 1,869.29 

22505 9/23/22 FIELDMAN, ROLAPP & ASSOCIATES, INC. 1000-20 18,610.50 

22506 9/23/22 BIG BEAR GRIZZLY 1000-20 286.00 

22507 9/23/22 BEAR VALLEY BASIN GSA 1000-20 73.47 

22508 9/23/22 HACH COMPANY 1000-20 337.17 

22509 9/23/22 INTERNATIONAL ACCREDITATION SERVICE INC 1000-20 5,000.00 

22510 9/23/22 LEOCO FENCE CO 1000-20 58.09 

22511 9/23/22 MITEL 1000-20 380.40 

22512 9/23/22 RANDY J. SPITZ 1000-20 85.02 

22513 9/23/22 PAPE MATERIAL HANDLING, INC. 1000-20 8,106.30 

22514 9/23/22 POLYDYNE INC 1000-20 4,232.36 

22515 9/23/22 ROGERS, ANDERSON, MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 1000-20 7,895.00 

22516 9/23/22 READY REFRESH 1000-20 106.63 

22517 9/23/22 ROI ENGINEERING LLC 1000-20 2,540.53 

22518 9/23/22 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON 1000-20 52.35 

22519 9/23/22 RYAN R. ABELN 1000-20 756.81 

22520 9/23/22 SOUTHWEST GAS CORP 1000-20 25.00 

22521 9/23/22 SOUTHWEST GAS 1000-20 223.18 

22522 9/23/22 SWRCB - DWOCP 1000-20 55.00 

22523 9/23/22 SYNAGRO-WWT, INC. 1000-20 20,045.16 

22524 9/23/22 NANCY R. BOHL, INC. 1000-20 150.00 

22525 9/23/22 VERIZON WIRELESS 1000-20 249.65 

22526 9/23/22 KEN WILLIS CONSTRUCTION 1000-20 980.00 

CASH 23591 9/28/22 LEGALSHIELD 1000-20 67.80 

CASH 23592 9/28/22 TEXAS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 1000-20 213.00 

CASH 23593 9/28/22 AMERICAN FIDELITY ASSURANCE CO 1000-20 663.90 

CASH 23594 9/28/22 PAYA 1000-20 9,276.71 

CASH 23595 9/30/22 PAYA 1000-20 39.37 

http:9,276.71
http:20,045.16
http:2,540.53
http:7,895.00
http:4,232.36
http:8,106.30
http:5,000.00
http:18,610.50
http:1,869.29
http:1,531.13
http:1,993.03
http:14:22:27.47


10/17/22 at 14:22:27.50 

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agncy
Check Register

For the Period From Sep 1, 2022 to Sep 30, 2022
Filter Criteria includes: 1) Accounts Payable only. Report order is by Date. 

Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount 

CASH 23596 9/30/22 EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 1000-20 2,651.53 

CASH 23597 9/30/22 THE LINCOLN NAT'L LIFE INS CO 1000-20 4,245.99 

CASH 23598 9/30/22 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 1000-20 7,656.03 

Total 340,328.01 

Page: 4 



                                                                                                                      
                                                                                    

   
                                                                                                                                                            
    
   
                                              

 

 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Big Bear Area Regional 
Wastewater Agency 
Rick Herrick – Chair 
John Green – Vice-Chair 
Jim Miller – Director 
Bynette Mote – Director 
Larry Walsh – Director   

AGENDA ITEM:  7.C.  

MEETING DATE:  October 26, 2022  

TO:    Governing Board of the Big Bear Area Regional  Wastewater Agency  

FROM:   David Lawrence, P.E., General Manager   

PREPARED B Y:  Jennifer McCullar,  Finance Manager  

SUBJECT:  Investment Report  Identifying Agency Investments and Reporting Interest  
Income  

BACKGROUND:   

Attached  is the  September  Monthly Investment Report  pursuant to the Agency’s  Investment Policy.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

There is no financial impact.  

RECOMMENDATION:   

Informational  



BBARWA 
Monthly Investment Report 

September 2022 

FAIR YEAR TO 
MARKET DATE INTEREST MATURITY 

INVESTMENT TYPE COST VALUE (1) INTEREST(2) RATE DATE 

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND $    5,662,883 $         5,589,975 $           12,928  1.513% DAILY 

 
TOTAL $    5,662,883 $         5,589,975 $            12,928 

The Investment Portfolio of the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency is in compliance with the investment policy approved in Sept 2022. 
The Agency will be able to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six months. 

(1)  LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF) IS A STATE-RUN INVESTMENT POOL PROVIDED FOR PUBLIC AGENCIES.  THE 
LAIF MARKET VALUE SHOWN ON THIS TREASURER'S REPORT REPRESENTS BBARWA'S SHARE OF THE LIQUID VALUE 
OF LAIF'S PORTFOLIO IF IT WAS LIQUIDATED AS OF THE END OF THE REPORTED MONTH.  THIS NUMBER SERVES AS 
AN INDICATOR OF WHETHER OR NOT THE MARKET VALUE OF LAIF'S INVESTMENTS IS ABOVE OR BELOW THE COST 
OF THOSE INVESTMENTS. 
(2)  Interest paid quarterly on LAIF investment.  Amount reflects interest income received at the reporting date during FY 2023 and excludes accrued interest. 

Attachment (s):  Monthly LAIF Statement 



  
  
  
  

 

 

 

 
 

California State Treasurer 
Fiona Ma, CPA 

    Local Agency Investment Fund  
    P.O. Box 942809  
    Sacramento, CA 94209-0001  
    (916) 653-3001    

October 17, 2022 

LAIF Home 
PMIA Average Monthly Yields 

BIG BEAR AREA REGIONAL WASTEWATER AGENCY 

FINANCE MANAGER 
P.O. BOX 517 
BIG BEAR CITY, CA  92314 

 -·---Tran Type Definitions

Account Number:  

September 2022 Statement 

Web Tran Effective Transaction Confirm Confirm Type Date Date Number Number Authorized Caller Amount 
9/13/2022 9/13/2022 RW 1713120 N/A JENNIFER MCCULLAR -500,000.00 

Account Summary 

Total Deposit: 0.00  Beginning Balance: 6,162,882.60 

Total Withdrawal: -500,000.00 Ending Balance: 5,662,882.60 

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif/index.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/Transaction%20Types%20Regular.htm
http:5,662,882.60
http:500,000.00
http:6,162,882.60
http:500,000.00


                                                                                                                      
                                                                                    

   
                                                                                                                                                            
    
   
                                              

 

 

  

  

     

    

  

   

   

   

    
     

   

  

 

  

         
   

   
 

  

    
   

 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Big Bear Area Regional 
Wastewater Agency 
Rick Herrick – Chair 
John Green – Vice-Chair 
Jim Miller – Director 
Bynette Mote – Director 
Larry Walsh – Director   

AGENDA ITEM: 9.A. 

MEETING DATE: October 26, 2022 

TO: Governing Board of the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

FROM: David Lawrence, P.E., General Manager 

PREPARED BY: Bridgette Burton, Management Analyst/Board Secretary 

REVIEWED BY: John Shimmin, Plant Manager 

SUBJECT: Wastewater-Based Surveillance for Viruses and Other Infectious Diseases 

BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION: 

On September 28, 2022, staff prepared an agenda item regarding wastewater-based surveillance for 
viruses and other infectious diseases. The Governing Board requested a written policy and 
additional information; both are attached to this report. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

There is no financial impact. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the attached policy, confirm the General Manager will manage and comply with state or 
federal wastewater-based surveillance orders, and direct the General Manager to bring any other 
request for wastewater-based surveillance for viruses and other infectious diseases to the Governing 
Board for consideration. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Wastewater-Based Surveillance for Viruses and Other Infectious Diseases Policy 
• Wastewater-Based Surveillance for Viruses and Other Infectious Diseases Additional 

Information 



   

   
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
   

  
 

  
 

  
   

 
 

  
  

  
   

 
     

   
  

 
    

    
  

   
  
     

 

 

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 
Policies and Procedures 

WASTEWATER-BASED SURVEILLANCE FOR VIRUSES AND OTHER INFECTIOUS 
DISEASES 

I. PURPOSE 

A. To establish specific guidelines for wastewater-based surveillance (WBS) for viruses and other 
infectious diseases. 

II. POLICY 

A. The Agency will only comply with WBS orders from state or federal agencies. All other valid 
requests must be brought before the Governing Board for consideration. A valid request is from 
an organization with qualified individuals or has partnered or contracted with a certified 
laboratory. 

B. All samples will be collected in accordance with existing practices, procedures, and 
regulations. Samples may only be used for educational and training purposes for viruses and 
other infectious diseases. 

C. The Agency will require the following for voluntary WBS that is brought before the Governing 
Board for consideration: 

a. The requestor will provide a wastewater sampling plan and schedule to be approved by 
the General Manager or Plant Manager. 

b. The Agency will not be financially responsible for any costs associated with voluntary 
WBS. This includes sampling supplies, transportation, or testing. 

c. The requestor will provide current insurance certificates if it will be on-site with the 
limits specified in the Agency’s current Terms and Conditions. 

d. Samples are to be tested in accordance with required hold times for samples and must 
be conducted by a certified lab. 

e. Sampling cannot interfere with plant operations. 
f. If a Member Agency opts out of voluntary WBS, then the other Member Agencies will 

be directly responsible for samples. 



   
 

  
   

 
   

 
 

    

 
 
 

  
   

     
 

    
 

     
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

   
        

 
    

  
  

  
 

   
      

 
 

 

Wastewater-Based Surveillance (WBS) for Viruses and Other Infectious Diseases 
Additional Information 

• Who owns the wastewater? Ordinance 69 defines the delivery point as the transfer point in 
which wastewater is delivered from a community sewer system (the three Member 
Agencies) into the regional system (treatment plant) and becomes property of the Agency. 

• Who has access to wastewater? Only qualified individuals can handle wastewater. 
Therefore, the general public is prohibited from accessing wastewater or requesting 
samples of wastewater. 

• Who can test the wastewater? Laboratories must follow strict adherence to the State Water 
Resources Control Board regulations for the Environmental Laboratory Accreditation 
Program (ELAP) and be certified to analyze the chemical, physical and biological 
components of wastewater as required by the Clean Water Act. Chain of custody 
requirements must be followed and are outlined in the Agency’s NPDES (National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) and Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) 
permits and are required by ELAP to maintain certification. 

• What is considered public record? Wastewater itself is not a public record; however, 
wastewater reports are subject to the California Public Records Act. 

• Is there any upcoming legislation? There is no known legislation regarding WBS. The 
Agency will continue to monitor for upcoming legislation. 

• Will Member Agencies be able to opt in or opt out? Each Member Agency appointed 
representatives to the Governing Board. When a requestor, other than a state or federal 
agency, requests wastewater samples for voluntary WBS, the matter will be brought to the 
Governing Board for consideration. At that time, the Governing Board can either approve 
the WBS or decide to consult with their respective boards/councils before a decision can 
be made. If a Member Agency opts out of WBS, then the other Member Agencies will be 
directly responsible for WBS samples. 

• Will the Agency allow testing for human genetic data? No. The Agency will not allow for 
testing human genetic data unless it is ordered or mandated by a state or federal agency. 

• What are other agencies doing? California Department of Public Health and the California 
State Water Resources Control Board together are coordinating with several wastewater 
utilities, local health departments, universities, and laboratories in California for voluntary 
WBS. Data collected from this network of participants, called Cal-SuWers, are submitted 
to the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention and the National Wastewater 
Surveillance System. Local agencies voluntarily participating in WBS include the cities of 
Fontana and San Bernardino, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, and San Bernardino 
Municipal Water District. 

• How are WBS results communicated? The requestor will be responsible for all 
communication of testing results. There is no federal or state requirement for publication 
of results by the Agency. 



     
 

•   What are the pitfalls of  WBS?   
o  There is no standard for  WBS.  Wastewater is a complex and variable mixture, and  

often contains compounds that can interfere with RNA quantification methods, 
thereby impeding accurate measurement. For each wastewater treatment location  
and at each step of detecting a virus, all analytical methods must be well-tailored  to 
the particular wastewater mixture. This is a  chemically and biologically  complex  
process and involves multiple steps that are difficult to standardize and require  
systematic controls.  

o  The number of people contributing to a given sewershed could change over time,  
whether seasonally (because of tourism and vacations) or weekly (because  of work-
related commutes or temporary workers), thereby  affecting the measurement.  

o  It is not possible to reliably and accurately predict the number of  infected  
individuals in a community based on sewage surveillance  alone. Factors that may  
influence this relationship include the amount of virus that each person sheds in 
their feces over time, which may vary according to the intensity of infection, the  
variant, and whether  an  individual is vaccinated, as well as  factors related to the 
wastewater.   

o  Low levels of viruses or infectious diseases may not be captured by WBS if the  
quantity of virus or infectious disease  falls below the limit of detection for lab  
analysis.  

o  Wastewater data could be linked with identifiable data, especially in small  
communities,  which may be  a potential privacy  and/or ethical  problem. The main  
concern is if human genetic data is misused (i.e. determining characteristics of the  
community such as race  or ethnicity, disease markers, etc.). Communities may be  
stigmatized if WBS suggests high pathogen levels or illicit drug use.  

 

Wastewater-Based Surveillance (WBS) for Viruses and Other Infectious Diseases Page 2 of 2 
Additional Information 



                                                                                                                      
                                                                                    

   
                                                                                                                                                            
    
   
                                              

 

 

 

   

     

   

    

   

      

   

   

  
 

    
  

  
    

   
 

   
 

 
    

   
   

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Big Bear Area Regional 
Wastewater Agency 
Rick Herrick – Chair 
John Green – Vice-Chair 
Jim Miller – Director 
Bynette Mote – Director 
Larry Walsh – Director   

AGENDA ITEM: 10.A. 

MEETING DATE: October 26, 2022 

TO: Governing Board of the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

FROM: David Lawrence, P.E., General Manager 

PREPARED BY: Jennifer McCullar, Finance Manager 

REVIEWED BY: John Shimmin, Plant Manager 

SUBJECT: Annual Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION: 

The Agency ended FY 2022 below the budget with lower operating and capital expenditures, 
resulting in a higher cash position.  The Agency’s operating expenses were below the budget by 
$971,530 or 17%.  A large part of the variance was due to GASB adjustments related to pension 
and OPEB expense.  Excluding these adjustments, operating expenses were below the budget by 
$517,627 or 9%.  Lower operating expenses resulted from lower costs across multiple line items, 
with the largest variances occurring in salaries and benefits, repairs and replacements, power and 
contractual services expenses.  Capital expenditures were below the budget by approximately $1.7 
million. This variance was largely due to timing with $1.5 million of budgeted projects carried 
over to FY 2023 and approximately $180,000 of budgeted projects rescheduled to FY 2024 and FY 
2025. 

As of June 30, 2022, the Agency is financially strong with current debt service coverage of 3.8 
times (excluding GASB adjustments), excess debt capacity and adequate funding to meet its reserve 
balance targets.  Historically, over the long term, the Agency has experienced relatively flat 
operating expenses driven by moderate increases in salaries and benefits expense and flat 
collection, treatment and disposal costs due to multiple factors including staffing changes, low 
flows and relatively low inflation.  Recent trends indicate rising costs driven by higher inflation 
and higher salaries and benefits expense. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

There is no financial impact. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Informational 

ATTACHMENT: 

Annual Report 



 

 

  

 

  
   

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Annual Report 
Twelve Months ended June 30, 2022 



  

  

 

 
 

      
 

 
 

  

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Annual Report 

INCOME STATEMENT (Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position)  
The statement below includes GASB accounting adjustments made in FY 2022 and reflects GAAP. (Amounts 
may differ from information provided in the Agency’s ACFR due to rounding.) 

Change in Net Position 

Actual Actual 
Actual Final Budget vs Budget vs Budget 

FY 2022 FY 2022 $ % 

Operating revenues: 
Annual charges $       5,845,163 $       5,845,163 $                      (0) 0% 
Waste disposal fees                22,000                21,690                      310 1% 
Rental income                        70                53,386               (53,316) -100% 
Standby fees                79,220                79,220                            - 0% 
Other operating revenue                   7,709                            -                   7,709 nm (a) 
Total operating revenues           5,954,162           5,999,460               (45,298) -1% 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries and benefits           2,095,989           2,664,027             (568,038) -21% 
Power              388,721              463,514               (74,793) -16% 
Sludge removal              271,361              319,488               (48,127) -15% 
Chemicals                51,788                83,557               (31,769) -38% 
Materials and supplies              120,638              133,744               (13,105) -10% 
Repairs and replacements              156,609              258,642             (102,032) -39% 
Equipment rental                      111                      854                     (743) -87% 
Utilities expense                22,427                30,388                 (7,961) -26% 
Communications expense                48,093                55,592                 (7,500) -13% 
Contractual services - other                86,212                94,563                 (8,351) -9% 
Contractual services - prof              196,672              252,383               (55,711) -22% 
Permits and fees              234,270              208,484                25,786 12% 
Property tax expense                   4,017                   4,016                           1 0% 
Insurance expense              188,844              229,214               (40,370) -18% 
Other operating expense                42,987                60,613               (17,626) -29% 
Depreciation and amort expense              883,955              905,147               (21,192) -2% 
Total operating expenses           4,792,696           5,764,225             (971,530) -17% 

Operating Income           1,161,466              235,234              926,232 394% 

Nonoperating income (expense): 
Nonoperating income                82,354              524,045             (441,691) -84% 
Nonoperating expense             (217,415)             (882,031)              664,616 + ( b) 
Total nonoperating income (exp)             (135,061)             (357,987)              222,925 + ( b) 

Income before capital contributions           1,026,405             (122,752)           1,149,157 + ( b) 
Capital contrib - conn fees              363,660              188,100              175,560 93% 

$       1,390,065 $             65,348 $       1,324,717 2027% ( b) 

(a)  nm = not meaningful and is the result when dividing by 0. 
(b)  Percent change is not provided if either of the comparison periods contains a loss or negative number.  If the actual performance 
is improved when compared to the budget a "+" is given.  If  the actual performance is worse when compared to the budget, a "-" is given. 

2 



  

  

 

 
 

   

 

  

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Annual Report 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW  
The following information may not be presented in accordance with GAAP. 

3 

Actual Final Budget Actual vs 
FY 2022 FY 2022 Budget 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating income (loss)  $ 1,161,466 $      235,234 $      926,232 
Depreciation expense         883,956         905,147          (21,191) 
Change in working capital         124,420            (2,988)         127,408 
GASB noncash adjustments/Payment of Pension Related Debt        (453,902)        (149,892)        (304,010)
     Net cash provided by operating activities      1,715,940         987,501         728,439 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Interagency and GSA Expense        (103,172)        (766,087)         662,915 
Purchases of property, plant and equip        (463,903)    (2,185,314)      1,721,411 
Sale, Disposal of PP&E and Other           13,905                       -           13,905 
Capital contributions         372,020         188,100         183,920 
Proceeds from debt issuance                       -                       -                       -
Proceeds from grant reimbursement         133,391         513,874        (380,483) 
Prepayment premiums and issuance costs                       -                       -                       -
Principal payments on long-term debt        (398,160)        (398,160)                      0 
Interest paid on long-term debt        (110,883)        (110,916)                   33 
Lease revenue           58,173                       -           58,173
     Net cash used for capital and related financing activities        (498,629)    (2,758,503)      2,259,874 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Investment income received          (79,723)           10,171          (89,894)
     Net  cash provided by investing activities          (79,723)           10,171          (89,894)

     Net change in cash equivalents      1,137,588    (1,760,831)      2,898,419 

Cash equivalents, beginning of period      6,694,851      6,694,851                       -
Cash equivalents, end of period      7,832,439      4,934,020      2,898,419 
Change in Cash during the period  $ 1,137,588  $(1,760,831)  $ 2,898,419  



  

  

 

 
 

      
     

     
   

 

 

  

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Annual Report 

Discussion and Analysis  

FY 2022  Budget Revisions  

During the year, the Agency modified its budget to include carryover appropriations from the prior year 
and new appropriations during the current year. Carryover appropriations are those expenditures that 
were budgeted but not spent by fiscal year end and are carried over to the next year or budget cycle. 
The budget referenced in all subsequent tables and charts reflects the final budget taking into account 
the appropriations. 

FY 2022  Appropriations  

4 

Appropriations 
Carryover New Total 

Operating Expenses 
Generator Repairs and Replacements $                    20,367 $                              - $                    20,367 
Contractual Services - Professional                       32,017                       43,650                       75,667 

Total Operating Expenses 

Nonoperating Expenses 

                      52,384                       43,650                       96,034 

Interagency - Replenish Big Bear                     332,564                                 -                     332,564 
GSA Admin Costs 
Total Nonoperating Expenses 

Capital Expenditures 

                       
                   

 2,945                                 -                         2,945 
 335,510                                 -                     335,510 

Station 3 Generator and Fuel Sys                     115,050                                 -                     115,050 
CBBL Flow  Meter and Softw are                       40,986                                 -                       40,986 
Eff luent Pump 3                       26,048                                 -                       26,048 
Ground Fault Monitor                       22,189                                 -                       22,189 
SCADA Prod Server + Gen Integration                                 -                       26,000                       26,000 
Grit System Engineering                                 -                       84,820                       84,820 
Grit System Rehab                                 -                     616,733                     616,733 
Splitter Box Building Electric/Lights 

Total Capital Expenditures 

Total Appropriations 

                               
                   

$                 

 -                         7,500                         7,500 
 204,273                     735,053                     939,326 

 592,167 $                  778,703 $               1,370,870  



  

  

 

 
 

 

 

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Annual Report 

Operating Revenues  

Operating revenues  were below  the budget by $45,298  or 1% due  largely  to the reclassification of rental  
income to  non-operating l ease revenue dur ing the period.   The reclassification was related to the 
implementation of  GASB  87 (the  new  guidance related to  the recognition of  lease assets  and  lease  
liabilities).  

Actual Actual 
vs Budget vs Budget 

Actual Budget $ % 

Operating revenues:
  Annual charges $    5,845,163 $    5,845,163 $                  (0) 0%
  Waste disposal fees             22,000             21,690                  310 1%
  Rental income                     70             53,386           (53,316) -100%
  Standby fees             79,220             79,220                        - 0%
  Other operating revenue               7,709                        -               7,709 nm (a)
  Total operating revenues $    5,954,162 $    5,999,460 $        (45,298) -1% 

(a)  nm = not meaningful and is the result when dividing by 0. 

Operating Expenses  

Operating expenses were below  the budget  by  $971,530  or  17%  with large variances across multiple 
line  items.   Variances  greater than 10%  and $20,000 are  highlighted below and  discussed on the next  
page.  

5 

Actual Actual 
vs Budget vs Budget 

Actual Budget $ % 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries and benefits*     2,095,989     2,664,027       (568,038) -21% 
Power         388,721         463,514         (74,793) -16% 
Sludge Removal         271,361         319,488         (48,127) -15% 
Chemicals           51,788           83,557         (31,769) -38% 
Materials and supplies         120,638         133,744         (13,105) -10% 
Repairs and Replacements         156,609         258,642       (102,032) -39% 
Equipment rental                 111                 854               (743) -87% 
Utilities expense           22,427           30,388           (7,961) -26% 
Communications expense           48,093           55,592           (7,500) -13% 
Contractual services - other           86,212           94,563           (8,351) -9% 
Contractual services - prof         196,672         252,383         (55,711) -22% 
Permits and fees         234,270         208,484          25,786 12% 
Property tax expense             4,017             4,016                     1 0% 
Insurance expense         188,844         229,214         (40,370) -18% 
Other operating expense           42,987           60,613         (17,626) -29% 
Depreciation expense         883,956         905,147         (21,191) -2% 
Total operating expenses     4,792,696     5,764,225       (971,530) -17% 



  

  

 

 
 

   
                                   
                                         
                                                      

    
 

    
   
     

   
                

   
 

   
    

   
           
         

   

                
     

             
    

 

   
         

  
   

   

          
    

 

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Annual Report 

Salaries and Benefits  expense  was below the budget by $568,038 or 21%  due mostly to  GASB  68 
and 75 adjustments related to pension and  OPEB  expense.  Excluding these adjustments,  salaries and  
benefits expense  was below  the budget by  $114,136 or 4% due mostly to lower medical  premium  
expense, lower accrued time and over  time expense, and the separation of a Plant  Operator without  
rehire.  

Actual Actual 
vs. Budget vs. Budget 

Actual Budget $ % 
Salaries and Wages $          1,595,352 $          1,639,708 $         (44,356) -3% 
Employee Benefits 931,797 994,180 $         (62,383) -6% 
Payroll Tax 22,742 23,195 $               (453) -2% 
Unemployment Expense - 6,944 $            (6,944) -
Total $          2,549,891 $          2,664,027 $       (114,136) -4% 

Power expense was below the budget by $74,793 or 16% and was due mostly to the transition to solar 
power during the period. The Agency budgeted for the transition to solar power on July 1; however, the 
solar facility was delayed. On November 1, a net meter was installed by Bear Valley Electric (BVE) and 
the Agency began using power from BVE under a net metering agreement.  Under the agreement, the 
Agency does not incur energy charges until the annual reconciliation period, a year later. With delays 
related to the solar facility, the Agency did not begin purchasing solar power until December 26th, 
although solar production delivered to BVE under the net metering agreement began December 4th.  As 
a result, the Agency did not incur energy or solar costs for a two-month period during the year which 
drove the variance from the budget. 

Sludge Removal expense was below the budget by $48,127 or 15%.  Lower sludge removal expense 
was due to lower sludge removed from the plant. The Agency removed 4,330 sludge tons, 660 fewer 
tons compared to the budget. Lower sludge removal was due in part to lower flows which were down 
120 MG or 15% from the budget. 

Chemicals expense was below the budget by $31,769 or 38% due to lower odor control chemicals 
expense and lower polymer (sludge thickening agent).  The Agency had odor control inventory on hand 
combined with lower odor control needs during the period resulting in no purchases during the period. 
Lower polymer expense was related to inventory on hand at the beginning of the period, which lowered 
required purchases during the period. 

Repairs and Replacements expense was under the budget by $102,032 or 39% due mostly to 
budgeted repairs which were not needed. The Agency had budgeted for $50,000 in repairs and 
replacement expense for “unplanned” repairs, which had occurred in prior periods but were not needed 
in the current period. Other planned repairs which did not occur included the floor repair in the OAC 
building, floor sealing at the Lake Pump Station and miscellaneous roof repairs. 

Contractual Services - Professional expense was under the budget by $55,711 or 22%.  The lower 
expense was driven by lower legal and engineering expense offset in part by other professional services 
expense related to financial advisory needs. 

6 



  

  

 

 
 

       
    

       
         

 
  

   
    

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Annual Report 

Permits and Fees  expense was over  the budget by $25,786  or 12%  due to higher SWRCB  fees  
(discharge per mit fees)  which were up $16,700  or 17% compared to the budget, and additional  
unbudgeted fees associated with recycled water  ($7,160) and a change-in-use fee associated with the  
generators ($3,814).  

Other  operating expense was below  the budget by $17,626  or 29% and was driven by lower education  
and training expense due to  less travel-related training associated with  the COVID-19 pandemic.  

Non-Operating  Income (Expense)  

Non-operating income  (expense)  had a positive  variance of $222,925  compared to the budget and  was  
driven by  lower  non-operating expense  of $664,616  associated with lower  Replenish Big Bear  (RBB)  
expenses  due to pr oject delays.   Lower  non-operating expenses were offset in part by  much lower  non-
operating income, lower  by $441,691 and due mostly  to lower grant reimbursements related to RBB,  
also due to  timing.  

Actual Actual 
vs. Budget vs. Budget 

Actual Budget $ % 
Nonoperating income (expense): 
Nonoperating income $               82,354 $            524,045 $           (441,691) -84% (a) 
Nonoperating expense              (217,415)              (882,031)                664,616 + (a) 
Total nonoperating income (exp) $           (135,061) $           (357,987) $            222,925 + (a) 

(a)  Percent change is not provided if either of the comparison periods contains a loss or negative number.  If the actual performance 
is improved when compared to the budget a "+" is given.  If  the actual performance is worse when compared to the budget, a "-" is given.  

Capital Contributions  (Connection Fees)  and Net  Income (Change in Net Assets)  

Income before capital contributions was ahead of the budget by $1,149,157 for the period primarily due 
to lower operating expenses than budgeted of $971,530 and a positive variance in net nonoperating 
income (expense) of $222,925. Connection fees were higher than the budget by $175,560 or 93% due 
to higher connections.  Connections were 87 compared to 45 budgeted, higher by 42 for the year. 

YTD YTD 
Actual Actual 

YTD YTD vs Budget vs Budget 
Actual Budget $ % 

Income before capital contributions $         1,026,405 $           (122,752) $         1,149,157 + (a) 
Capital contrib - conn fees                363,660                188,100                175,560 93% 
Net Income, Change in net assets $         1,390,065 $               65,348 $         1,324,717 2027% (a) 

(a)  Percent change is not provided if either of the comparison periods contains a loss or negative number.  If  the actual performanc 
is improved w hen compared to the budget a "+" is given.  If   the actual performance is w orse w hen compared to the budget, 
a "-" is given. 

Capital Expenditures   

Capital expenditures for the period were $463,903, below the budget by $1,721,411.  The variance was 
largely due to timing associated with multiple projects. 

7 



  

  

 

 
 

 

 

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

Annual Report 

Cash  and  Fund Balances  

The Agency  had  positive  cash flow  of  $1,137,588  compared to  negative cash flow  of  approximately  
$1.8  million  budgeted  for the period.   Higher cash flow of approximately  $2.9  million  compared t o the 
budget  was  due to 1) higher connection fee revenue, 2)  lower operating expenses,  capital expenditures,  
Replenish Big Bear  expenses  and 3)  the deferral  of  an  optional  OPEB  contribution (the Lump Sum  
Payment).  The Agency chose  to  defer the Lump Sum Payment  due to the funded  position of the  
Agency’s OPEB liability at June 30, 2022 and competing demands on capital associated with capital  
improvement needs.  

Cash Balance 

Beginning 
Balance 

6,694,851 

Activity 
During Period 

Ending 
Balance 

7,832,439 

Designated Fund Balances: 
Capital and Replacement Fund
  Current Year 
  Future Year 
  Total C&R 
Debt Service Fund 
Liquidity Fund 
Contingency Fund:
  Emergency 
  Operating 
Total 

2,185,314 
275,652 

2,460,966 
509,077 

2,414,962 

500,000 
809,846 

1,309,846 

(463,903) 
0 

(463,903) 
(509,043) 

1,738,514 

0 
(0) 
(0) 

1,721,411
275,652

1,997,063 
34 

4,153,476 

500,000
809,846 

1,309,846 

Restricted Funds: 
Connection Fees 0 372,020 372,020 

Total Designated & Restricted Funds 6,694,851 1,137,588 7,832,439 

8 



                                                                                                                     Big Bear Area Regional 
                                                                              Wastewater Agency      

 Rick Herrick – Chair 
                                                                                                                                                         John Green – Vice-Chair  
 Jim Miller – Director 
 Bynette Mote – Director  
 Larry Walsh – Director                                                                                                                          
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AGENDA ITEM: 10.B. 

MEETING DATE: October 26, 2022 

TO:    Governing Board of the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

FROM:  David Lawrence, P.E., General Manager  

REVIEWED BY: Jennifer McCullar, Finance Manager; and John Shimmin, Plant Manager 

SUBJECT: Exemption from Competitive Procurement for the Replenish Big Bear Pilot 
Facility 

BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION: 

Due to the nature of a pilot study, it is not uncommon to exclude the related facility and service 
components from the normal competitive bidding requirements legally required by government 
agencies.  As such, a Pilot Program exclusion has been provided for in the Agency’s purchasing 
policy and can be applied when the Agency is conducting a field test, experiment, feasibility study 
or small-scale trial to determine how a large-scale project might work in practice.  This exclusion 
from competitive procurement requires Governing Board approval. 

Piloting the proposed treatment process for Replenish Big Bear is essential to confirming the 
proposed treatment process approach and critical to demonstrating process performance for site-
specific wastewater conditions to the regulatory agencies. As a result, the Agency and its engineers, 
Water Systems Consulting, Inc., will be selective when coordinating with manufacturers and 
vendors for the various components of the proposed treatment. The manufacturers and vendors will 
be limited to those that can provide equipment consistent with the requirements of the proposed 
treatment process and have piloting facilities available. The scope of this piloting effort will not 
involve pre-qualification or pre-selection of manufacturers and vendors for the proposed treatment 
process based on participation in this piloting study. This piloting study is exclusively for 
confirming the proposed treatment process as a viable design approach to meet the target treatment 
levels and to demonstrate performance to the regulators.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

There is no determinable financial impact from excluding the Replenish Big Bear pilot facility, 
including all components and related services, from normal competitive bidding requirements. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Approve and confirm the Agency is exempt from competitive procurement for the Replenish Big 
Bear pilot facility. 



                                                                                                                      
                                                                                    

   
                                                                                                                                                            
    
   
                                              

 

 

  

  

     

    

  

 
 

  

     
   

         
       

 
 

 

 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Big Bear Area Regional 
Wastewater Agency 
Rick Herrick – Chair 
John Green – Vice-Chair 
Jim Miller – Director 
Bynette Mote – Director 
Larry Walsh – Director   

AGENDA ITEM: 10.C. 

MEETING DATE: October 26, 2022 

TO: Governing Board of the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency 

FROM: David Lawrence, P.E., General Manager 

PREPARED BY: Bridgette Burton, Management Analyst/Board Secretary 

SUBJECT: Adjourn the November 23rd and December 28th 2022 Regular Board 
Meetings and Schedule a Special Meeting 

BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION: 

The Agency historically adjourns the November and December Regular Board Meetings due to the 
proximity of the holidays. At this time, it is appropriate for the Governing Board to consider 
formally adjourning these meetings and schedule a Special Meeting during the week of December 
5th – 9th, at a time convenient for the Governing Board. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
There is no financial impact. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adjourn the November 23rd and December 28th 2022 Regular Board Meetings and schedule a 
Special Meeting. 


	1. 102622 Regular Meeting Agenda
	5.A. Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
	5.A.1 Attachment
	5.A.2 Attachment
	6.A. General Manager's Report
	6.A.1 BBARWA_Monthly_Performance_October
	6.A.2. Influent Flow Chart
	7.A. 092822 Regular Meeting Minutes
	7.B. Monthly Disbursement Report
	7.B.1 Attachment
	7.C. Investment Report Identifying Investments and Reporting Interest Income
	7.C.1 Attachment
	7.C.2 Attachment
	9.A. Wastewater-based surveillance for virus
	9.A.1 WBS Policy
	9.A.2 WBS Additional Info
	10.A. Annual Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
	10.A.1 Attachment
	INCOME STATEMENT (Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position)
	STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
	Discussion and Analysis
	FY 2022 Budget Revisions
	Operating Revenues
	Operating Expenses
	Non-Operating Income (Expense)
	Capital Contributions (Connection Fees) and Net Income (Change in Net Assets)
	Capital Expenditures
	Cash and Fund Balances


	10.B. Replenish Big Bear Pilot Sole Source
	10.C. Adjourn Nov & Dec meetings



